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“Every battle is won or lost before it is ever 
fought,” a wise man once said, alluding to the 
need to plan carefully for future contingencies. 
We did a lot of planning in Fiscal Year 2016 
(July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016), and thanks to 
customers’ continued water- conservation 
efforts, and some excellent staff work, I’m 
proud to say Roseville is in a better place today. 

Four years of drought reminded all of us that 
water is a precious resource to be used wisely. 
We had a good amount of snow during the 
past winter and spring, which caused the 
state to suspend its emergency drought 
requirements. But it’s too early to declare 
“victory.” One normal year of snowfall does not 
offset four years of drought. As Folsom Lake 
fills, I am asking customers to continue using 
water wisely.

Our customers have done a tremendous job 
conserving water. Overall, Roseville residents 
and businesses used 34 percent less water last 
year than their baseline year in 2013. 

I don’t like brown lawns any more than our 
customers do, but brown lawns became 
a badge of solidarity during the drought, 
showing we as a community were united in 
confronting the drought.

I was particularly delighted that several 
Roseville businesses made investments to 
reduce their water use during in Fiscal 2016. 
You can read the stories shared by Bud’s 
Cleaners, Kaiser Permanente and DDR Corp. 
in the pages that follow. Bobby Alvarez, our 
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water efficiency manager, and his team continue 
to do an outstanding job helping customers 
understand their water use, and assess and 
implement water conservation measures. 

Having employees directly interact with 
customers is one way Environmental Utilities 
(EU) keeps its hometown feel. Once you lose 
that personal touch, it’s hard to re-establish 
it. Many utilities outside Roseville limit 
opportunities for personal interactions with 
customers. We expand them. 

I spent a lot of time talking with customers last 
year about the restructuring of our water rates. 
We used to have four tiers, based on usage, but 
a court case invalidated tiered rates for most 
water utilities in the state. So we compressed 
four water tiers into one universal rate. For some 
customers, the price of water went up, while for 
others it went down. I think it’s fair to say no one 
was happy about the restructuring, but when I 
explained why we were doing it, they seemed
to understand. 

Our goal was to keep increases in customers’ 
water bill to about $5 per home, and we were 
able to hit that target. I am grateful to the 
employees who put in long hours to craft a price 
structure that made economic sense and passed 
legal muster.

The drought caused a lot of people to think 
more about water — where it comes from, 
its value, how it can be used as efficiently as 
possible and how to build in extra measures 
of reliability. Water is a resource, sometimes a 
finicky one. Too much or too little can create 
challenges. Our view — that every drop counts 
— has led us to develop new programs and 
approaches to using this life-sustaining resource 
as efficiently as possible.
For example, this past May we held our first 
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“Mulch Mayhem” event, where we gave away 
over 320 cubic yards of mulch to residents. More 
than 300 cars and trucks spent up to 90 minutes 
in line on May 21st to receive a free cubic yard 
of mulch. Applied to flower and vegetable beds, 
mulch reduces evaporation, decreases weeds 
and improves the health of plants and shrubs, 
which, in the end, saves water. 

I am especially grateful to Mallard Creek for 
providing the mulch, Placer County Fairgrounds 
for use of their facilities and the 23 people who 
staffed that event. The mile-long line of vehicles 
told us we need to make this an annual event, 
and so we will. 

The Mulch Mayhem event is one of many times 
during the year when our customers interacted 
directly with EU employees to improve life
in Roseville. 

We call these aha moments, times and places 
where we interact directly and personally 
with residents who depend on our services. In 
short, it’s where utilities meet life. Whether it’s 
conducting a Water Wise house call, recycling 
organic food waste, rehabilitating our waterways 
or having our children experience the exciting 
“Big Trucks Summer” events at the Utility 
Exploration Center, these personal interactions 
break down barriers and bring us together so 
we can all realize the full potential of this special 
community we call home. 

Sincerely,

Richard D. Plecker, P.E.
Environmental Utilities Director
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Compare Our Rates
The Environmental Utilities Department operates municipal water, 
wastewater, recycled water, and solid waste utilities for residential, 
commercial, and industrial customers in Roseville. City ownership of these 
municipal utilities allows customers the dual benefit of reliable services and 
utility rates that remain among the lowest in the region.
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FY 2016 FY 2012FY 2015 FY 2011FY 2014 FY 2010FY 2013 FY 2009

Water Savings 
Through 
Xeriscaped 
Landscaping

2016 - 25
2015 - 10
2014 - 6
2013 - 6
2012 - 3
2011 - 4
2010 - 3
2009 - 3

Water Savings 
Through
Drought-Resistant 
Landscaping

2015 - 5.9
2014 - 3.2
2013 - 3.2
2012 - 1.9

61,178

2011 - 2.3

47,393

2010 - 1.5

69,734

2009 - 2

57,304

99,466

2016 - 14.7

181,485

454,396

100,312
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CASH FOR GRASS 
PROGRAM GROWS 

DRAMATICALLY

GALLONS SAVED ON TURF REPLACEMENT (SQ FT)

WATER SAVINGS IN MILLION GALLONS OF WATER

FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009



MAKING SURE THERE’S 
ENOUGH   WATER FOR 
YOUR LIFE   MOMENTS

lowered their 2016 water 
use between 29 percent 
and 37 percent, on average, 
compared to their pre-visit 
water use for fiscal year 2014. 
Those visits saved our community 
millions of gallons of water in the just-
completed fiscal year. 

Direct employee interaction with customers 
through the Cash for Grass or Water Wise 
programs are important aha moments where 
utilities meet life. Our employees are the 
face and voice of EU, and we have received 
numerous kind “thank you” notes from 
residential customers after Water Wise
House Calls. 

One customer wrote, “Gary was not only 
professional but also very personable at the 
same time. He did a fantastic job and wore 
a smile from start to finish.” Another told us, 
“My garden and lawn are so happy after John 
fine-tuned my system.” And a third wrote, 
“Thank you for taking the time to explain how 
my irrigation system operates. The technician 
left a lasting impression on my husband and 
I and we were impressed with his overall 
knowledge. He did a super, super job!”

“Water reliability” became a watchword in 
fiscal year 2016. Environmental Utilities (EU) 
embraced water reliability this past year. We 
worked hard to create new options — on 
the supply side and the customer side — to 
ensure our community continues to have 
a steady supply of affordably priced water 
during times of plenty and during times 
of drought.

Customers continued doing an outstanding 
job conserving water during fiscal year 
2016, which ran from July 1, 2015, to June 
30, 2016. Residential customers continued 
to participate in the Cash for Grass program, 
removing 454,396 square feet of turf, which 
saved between 14.7 million and 25.1 million 
gallons of water. Overall, customers reduced 
their water use by approximately 34 percent 
last year, well ahead of our 28 percent goal 
established by the state.

Our water efficiency specialists made about 
830 Water Wise House Calls with residential 
customers last year. The Water Wise House 
Call program is a free, customized assessment 
of water efficiency opportunities we provide 
to our residential customers. While visiting a 
customer, we also make sure their irrigation 
system is set properly. 

This program is one of our most popular 
customer-engagement efforts. Customers 
who received a Water Wise visit from 2015 
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BUD’S DRY 
CLEANING IS 
DRIER THAN 
EVER
Bud’s Dry Cleaning replaced inefficient water-
cooling equipment with an efficient water 
recycling and cooling system, lowering its 
water use by an estimated 3.6 million gallons 
per year. 

That’s the amount of water typically used each 
year by 24 Roseville households of four. 

“When you think about dry cleaning, ‘water’ 
might not be the first thing that comes to 
mind,” Sharon Sargent, office manager at 
Bud’s Cleaners, told us. “But water is one of 
our largest costs. Of course, we use it in the 
laundry. But most of the water we use is to cool 
our dry-cleaning machine, which is about the 
size of a Volkswagen.”

“With our old dry-cleaning machine,” Sharon 
continued, “water was ‘one and done.’ We 
used it once to cool the equipment then 
we disposed of it. But our new dry-cleaning 
machine came with a chiller, which allows 
us to reuse water to cool the equipment. We 
figure that’s saving us about $1,000 per month 
in water costs alone. This is helpful since most 
of our other costs continue to rise and the cost 
of the new machine was over $125,000.”

“It’s not easy running a small business, 
particularly these days,” Sharon said. Bud’s 
Cleaners has been operating for 57 years 
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in Roseville. It’s a local landmark. There are 
other dry cleaners in town, but none have the 
longevity of Bud’s. She is grateful her water bill 
has declined. So are we.

As our recent drought stretched into its fourth 
year, David Kitchell, Bud’s owner, went to EU’s 
website looking for rebates for water-efficient 
equipment, Sharon explained. “We were going 
to have to replace our dry-cleaning machine 
anyway, so David was wondering if he could 
get some financial help for choosing a model 
that saved water.” 

“I feel the city really looks out for its small 
businesses,” Sharon said. “Our job is to make 
your clothes look as good as the day you 
bought them. The people at EU are helping us 
do our job better, and at a lower cost.”

“The water specialist we worked with made it 
easy. He was really nice to work with. He took 
the time to understand how we use water, and 
he filed a rebate application on our behalf. We 
got our rebate check for $2,010 within a month 
after the new equipment was installed.”

Sharon urged other small businesses to reach 
out to EU to see what rebates are available. 
“They’ll come out and give you a free onsite 
evaluation of your water use, which was really 
helpful. We all need to use water wisely. It’s 
such a precious resource.”

I feel the city really looks out 
for its small businesses. Our 
job is to make your clothes 
look as good as the day you 
bought them. The people at 
EU are helping us do our job 
better, and at a lower cost.
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DDR: CONSERVING WA   TER, LOWERING COSTS

When you run upscale shopping centers like the 
Ridge at Creekside, appearances count for a lot.

“Having beautiful landscape, seasonal flowers 
and well-pruned trees creates a welcoming 
environment and draws the customer to the 
center. Customers don’t want to shop at a 
center where the grass is brown,” 
explained Michelle Kaus, 
general manager for DDR 
Corp., which owns and 
manages the Ridge at 
Creekside. 

Brown grass and 
dying landscape 
resulting from the 
watering restrictions 
during the extreme 
drought of 2015 
led DDR to make a 
substantial investment 
in irrigation sustainability 
projects in 2016.

“Our company has had sustainability 
initiatives for several years,” she told us recently. 
“DDR believes that sustainability investments 
are part of being a responsible organization. 
It’s important for us to use resources wisely, 
particularly in a drought, and we look for 
projects that will have the greatest impact on 

the environment while also delivering a financial 
benefit to our tenants and shareholders.”

In fiscal year 2016, DDR dug deep — literally and 
figuratively — to make its Creekside property 
more water efficient. 

It installed new state-of-the-
art irrigation controllers 

and hydrometers. The 
controllers have remote 

management capability 
and weather tracking 
features, which allow 
you to irrigate only 
when you need it. 
The hydrometers 

shut the system 
down when they 

detect unscheduled 
water flow, which 

prevents water waste 
that often goes on for days.

Michelle said, “The hydrometers 
are the key to saving water. You have to 

stop undetected leaks.” 

DDR also removed over 3,000 square feet of turf 
and replaced it with low- to medium-water use 
trees and shrubs. It also removed above-ground 
spray nozzles that watered 8,509 square feet of 
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DDR: CONSERVING WA   TER, LOWERING COSTS

turf and converted to a subterranean Netafim™ 
drip system.  The company paid approximately 
$65,000 for this work, but EU provided DDR 
with a substantial rebate from its Commercial 
Irrigation Efficiency rebate program to help 
defray the costs of the upgrades. 

“This project has a four-to-five-year 
payback period and we 
anticipate a 30 percent to 
40 percent reduction in 
water use as compared 
to the non-drought 
years,” she said. 
This equates to an 
estimated savings of 
4.8 million gallons of 
water per year.

Michelle added, “It 
didn’t make sense not 
to do it. We would not 
be working in our tenants’ 
or owners’ best interest if we 
didn’t invest in these improvements.”

“We live in a drought-prone area,” Michelle 
noted. “Making these improvements is an 
investment in risk management. The conversion 
from spray head to drip system will put us in a 
much better position the next time a drought 
comes along. Areas with drip irrigation also 

have a more lenient watering schedule during 
drought restrictions.”

Michelle had high praise for John Shannon, 
one of EU’s water efficiency specialists. “The guy 
really knows his stuff. He helped us through the 
entire process from the planning stages through 

the final inspection, assisting along the 
way to ensure we got this right. 

John also helped us submit our 
rebate application on the 

project. He was a great 
collaborator.”

“If you work for a 
business that has a 
long-term perspective, 
you must make 

water sustainability 
investments,” Michelle 

commented. “This project 
was just the beginning for 

DDR Corp. We have just begun 
on what will be a multi-year 

continued investment in irrigation 
upgrades at our shopping center in Roseville.” 

“It’s the right thing to do, and it’s the smart thing 
do to for both your tenants and stakeholders,” 
she continued. “When it comes to water, we all 
need to think and act strategically.”
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This project has a four-to-five-year 
payback period and we anticipate a 
30 percent to 40 percent reduction 
in water use as compared to the 
non-drought years. This equates to 
an estimated savings of 4.8 million 
gallons of water per year.



NEW TOILETS
AND FAUCETS
AT MAJOR 
HEALTHCARE 
FACILITIES
SAVE WATER
& MONEY
Updating inefficient toilets and faucets in restrooms 
is an easy way to reduce water and save money. With 
dozens of public restrooms at Kaiser Permanente’s 
Roseville Medical Center and associated medical 
office buildings, it was an easy decision to make the 
change to more efficient faucets and toilets. 
 
“Public toilets and sink faucets offered us a great 
opportunity to conserve water and meet our 
sustainability goal of using the most efficient 
products available in accord with the needs of 
our doctors and patients,” explained Jeff Collins, 
Senior Vice President and Area Manager for Kaiser 
Permanente Roseville. 
 
By replacing old 3.5-gallons-of-water-per-flush toilets 
and installing low-flow faucets, Kaiser Permanente 
Roseville will save over 600,000 gallons of water per year. 
 
“We had already made many water efficiency 
improvements before the start of and during the 
recent drought,” he continued. “But the governor’s 
declaration of emergency drought measures in fiscal 
year 2016 caused us to take an even harder look at 

where and how we used water. Since we had already 
replaced a lot of turf and other water fixtures, public 
toilets and faucets seemed to be the low-hanging fruit.” 
 
Jeff was grateful that EU partnered with Kaiser 
Permanente. “EU was definitely helpful in building a 
compelling business case for the upgrades,” he recalled. 
“Roseville was one of the easiest cities to work with 
in Northern California regarding the rebate process. 
Other Northern California cities where we operate offer 
no water-efficiency rebates, which make it harder to 
develop a business case for those upgrades.” 
 
“Kaiser Permanente’s relationship with the 
community is really important,” he added. “We exist in 
a water-constrained ecosystem. We have found that 
businesses can continue to operate normally with 
low-flow toilets and faucets. I highly suggest that 
anyone thinking about doing upgrades call EU.” 
 
We are delighted to partner with forward-looking 
businesses like Bud’s, DDR and Kaiser Permanente. 
They are wise corporate citizens who understand 
and embrace a shared understanding of the fragility 
of our environment and the importance of using 
resources wisely.
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NEW TOILETS
AND FAUCETS
AT MAJOR 
HEALTHCARE 
FACILITIES
SAVE WATER
& MONEY
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RECYCLED 
WATER, NEW 
PROJECTS 
BOOST 
RELIABILITY
Recycling water is another way we increase our 
water reliability. Irrigating trees and athletic fields 
with recycled water reduces the demand for potable 
water. Recycled water is carried across Roseville 
through a network of purple pipes and hydrants. 

Our golf courses, parks, school athletic fields and 
the Roseville Energy Park have been our biggest 
users of recycled water, and we thank them 
for their ongoing support. By using recycled 
water, these customers free up potable water 
for personal consumption, stretching our water 
resources and increasing our water reliability. 
Last year, EU customers used an estimated 876 
million gallons of recycled water. 

In fiscal year 2016 we expanded our recycled 
water program by inviting commercial 
landscaping companies and residential 
customers to use recycled water to water shrubs, 
lawns and trees. Recycled water costs less than 
potable water, and we hope in the upcoming 
years participation in this program will continue 
to grow.  

Construction contractors are another important 
partner in the effort to stretch our water 
resources and increase our water reliability. 

13



Contractors are using recycled water for soil 
compaction and dust control, which ensured 
that one of our economic engines continued 
to hum while also being mindful of statewide 
water restrictions.  

While our customers worked hard to make every 
drop count, our employees were overseeing 
several important water reliability projects, 
including the Intertie and Zone 4 Transfer 
projects. Senior Engineer Jose Lopez oversaw 
these projects, which were completed in 
February 2016 and which received an award 
from the Sacramento Section of the American 
Society of Civil Engineers.

“The Intertie project allows us to either buy 
or exchange water with other nearby water 
agencies during a drought or a catastrophic 
event,” he told us. “Up to 3,000 gallons of 
water per minute can be pumped through the 
Intertie project if needed.”

Jose also supervised construction of the Zone 
4 Transfer project, which increases our ability 
to move groundwater across our system. This 
project allows groundwater to be moved from 
the western area of our water system, where most 
of our wells are, to the central and eastern part of 
our water system, where many customers live.

We increased water reliability in another way in 
fiscal year 2016 when we completed “slip lining” 
about two miles of water main near Wills Road 
and Douglas Boulevard along Atlantic Street 
and Republican Alley. “Our water mains are 
predominately constructed with PVC and ductile 
iron pipe. Some of the older mains, which were 
installed before World War II, are constructed 
with cast iron and steel pipe,” commented 
Principal Engineer Dale Olson. “Rather than dig 
up streets to replace leaking water mains, we 
insert a PVC pipe inside the existing pipe.”

“Slip-lining, a fancy name for pipe-within-a-pipe, 
reduces project cost as much as 40% to 60% 
compared to the traditional pipe-excavation 
and replacement process, as well as the 
inconveniences when traffic is detoured around 
a street construction project”.

The Intertie project allows us to 
either buy or exchange water 
with other nearby water agencies 
during a drought or a catastrophic 
event. Up to 3,000 gallons of 
water per minute can be pumped 
through the Intertie project if 
needed.
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NO AGENCY IS AN ISLAND
(PARTICULARLY IN A DROUGHT)
Physical improvements to our systems are 
one way we are increasing water reliability for 
customers. Another is working with other water 
agencies to ensure Roseville’s water contracts 
are protected and the region’s water resources 
remain within our region.

One such inter-agency effort is complying 
with the state’s recently enacted Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (SGMA), 
a landmark piece of legislation we helped 
shape. Prior to enactment of SGMA, the state 
of California never tried to actively manage its 
groundwater resources.

Two employees, Assistant EU Director Kelye 
McKinney, P.E., and Public Affairs Administrator 
Sean Bigley, provided valuable subject-matter 
expertise to lawmakers in Sacramento as 
SGMA was drafted and during development 
of the follow-on regulations. Kelye and Water 
Utility Manager Jim Mulligan are working with 
surrounding water agencies to implement 
SGMA requirements.

Kelye and Assistant Engineer Colleen Boak also 
led a team of experts in filing our 2015 Urban 
Water Management Plan, a 25-year forecast of 
water supply and demand. Completed during 
the summer of 2015, when the drought was still 
a daily fact of life, this plan concluded Roseville 
has an adequate supply of water to meet 
current and future demand in wet and dry years. 
Kelye and Jim also are key participants in a 
multi-agency effort, led by the Regional Water 
Authority, to prepare a long-term regional water 

reliability plan. The Regional Water Authority is 
comprised of nearly two dozen separate water 
agencies in four counties, working together to 
protect and manage regional water supplies for 
the Greater Sacramento region.

Like a well-balanced financial portfolio, 
diversification is critical to achieving water 
reliability. The City already has accomplished 
diversification of supplies with surface water, 
groundwater and recycled water. The next 
enhancement to this portfolio is diversification 
of our surface water diversion points. 
Richard Plecker, Kelye and Jim are working with 
the Placer County Water Agency to participate 
in its future Ophir Water Treatment Plant. This 
project will allow deliver of additional surface 
water supplies to Roseville from a diversion 
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located upstream of Folsom Reservoir on the 
North Fork of the American River. 
Another new diversion being evaluated, in 
cooperation with seven other water agencies, 
is the RiverArc Project. This project would allow 
for moving water from an existing diversion 
located on the Sacramento River into northern 
Sacramento and western Placer counties. 

We’re leaving no stone unturned in our quest 
to increase water reliability for Roseville. 
That means we are evaluating and pursuing 
a creative mix of customer programs, 
construction projects, groundwater programs, 
recycled water system expansions and inter-
agency agreements. 

We worry about water reliability so our 
customers don’t have to.

We’re leaving no stone unturned 
in our quest to increase water 
reliability for Roseville. That 
means we are evaluating and 
pursuing a creative mix of 
customer programs, construction 
projects, groundwater programs, 
recycled water system expansions 
and inter-agency agreements. 
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UTILITY 
EXPLORATION 
CENTER 
CREATES 
“HOW 
DOES THAT 
WORK?” 
MOMENTS
Sandra Hurle brought her 22 fifth-grade 
students to the Utility Exploration Center (UEC) 
recently. Most of her students, who attend 
Catheryn Gates Elementary School, have visited 
this unique, hands-on, environmental learning 
center before. After a brief conversation 
about the water cycle and the scarcity of fresh 
water on the planet, students were shown a 
progression of pictures that explained their 
local watershed, ending at Folsom Lake, the city 
of Roseville’s drinking water source.

17

Kerry Rasmussen, The Utility Exploration Center’s 
Interpretive Lead Working With Students.  



Most of Mrs. Hurle’s students have been to 
Folsom Lake, during both wet years and dry 
ones. When asked, the students had a lot to say 
about how four years of drought had turned 
Folsom Lake into Folsom Puddle.

“During the drought, the lake looked like a 
parking lot,” said one. Another said, “The water 
was so low, I almost stepped on a fish.” A third 
student remarked, “We could see trash that had 
been under water.”

The students were participating in a popular 
student program called “H2Own,” which aims 
to give students a greater sense of ownership 
and responsibility for the area’s scarce water 
resources.

18

HOW MANY 
STUDENTS 
HAVE VISITED
FOLSOM 
LAKE?



UEC OFFERS 
BROAD RANGE OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAMMING

required to be “green,” meaning 
no bottled water was sold 
and the food was served with 
minimal paper waste.

Throughout the year, the 
center’s free family drop-in 
programs invited families 
to explore how they can be 
a partner with the utilities 
to keep Roseville safe and 
sustainable. These programs 
include the “Bird and 
Bug Bonanza,” a program 

highlighting how families 
can protect the ecosystem by 
choices they make in their own 
backyards, to “Curby’s Waste-
a-Palooza,” a program focusing 
on waste reduction and 
wastewater management. 

Another popular free event 
at the center is “Big Trucks 
Summer,” a series of four 
Thursdays in July where 
children and adults get to see 
the large equipment used by 
Roseville’s utilities in action. 
Garbage Truck Day is especially 
popular: families watched the 
couch-crushing power of the 
Solid Waste Utility trucks, saw 
the new specialized truck that 
collects organic waste, got 
“behind the wheel” and met the 
talented operators of the fleet. 

Overall, the UEC hosted 7,301 
students in fiscal year 2016. 
Family programs totaled 3,146 
participants. Total visitors 
numbered 34,098. 

Thanks to special support 
from EU and Roseville Electric 
Utility, the UEC provides 
free admission for its school 
programs to Roseville schools. 
In fiscal year 2016, the UEC 
provided programming to over 
7,000 school children, over 
5,000 of which were Roseville 
students. The “H2Own” water 
efficiency program, for 
example, drew an estimated 
177 fourth-through-sixth grade 
students. Other popular water 
and environmental school 
programs include “Keepin’ it 
Clean,” a watershed-protection 
program, “Hydro Heroes,” a 
water-efficiency program, 
and “Stuff Busters,” a waste-
reduction program. 

The UEC’s “Celebrate the Earth 
Festival” was the center’s 
largest event to date, drawing 
an estimated 5,000 people 
on April 22, 2016. That event 
had live entertainment, kids’ 
activities, local food, green 
vendors, a scavenger hunt 
and more. Food vendors were 
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“Big Trucks Summer,” a 
series of four Thursdays in 
July where thousands of 
children and adults get to 
see the large equipment 
used by Roseville’s 
utilities in action. 



LEARNING STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT EARLY 
Let’s get back to Mrs. Hurle’s fifth graders. Kerry 
Rasmussen, the UEC’s Interpretive lead working 
with students that day, gave each table of 
students a blue plastic “puzzle” pie representing 
Folsom Lake when it was full. Each pie slice was 
a different size. She listed the seven stakeholder 
groups who have a claim on water from the lake:

• agricultural users
• flood control districts
• energy and power generation
• wildlife
• domestic users  (i.e., homes and  
  businesses)
• recreation
• navigation 

Then Kerry passed out slips of paper with the 
stakeholders’ names on them and asked each table to 
decide which stakeholder group got the most water 
and which got the least when the lake was full.

Adults are still wrestling with this challenge. But the 
students took it in stride.

Two of the four tables said most of the water should 
go to domestic use (i.e., homes and businesses). One 
table said energy and power generation while the 
fourth said wildlife. 

“Without tap water, all our toilets would become 
porta-potties,” commented one fifth grader. Said 
another, “Without energy and power generation, 
we’d have nothing.” One student said recreational 
users should get the least amount of water: “We can 
have fun at a water park,” she said. Two other tables 
agreed.

Then there was a spirited discussion about 
sharing. “Even during wet years, we still 

need to pay attention to how we use 
the water from Folsom Lake,” Kerry 

said. “That’s why stakeholder needs 
must be assessed carefully and 

fairly.”
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Empowering students to help 
make a difference is what I love. 
When they understand the 
decisions they make affect us all, 
that really makes my day.



EACH OF 
US HAS 
A ROLE 
IN WISE 
WATER 
USE

Then Kerry passed out a set of cards with common household 
uses of water, like taking a bath, washing a load of clothes, taking 
a shower or brushing your teeth. She asked the students which 
household uses consumed the most water. Taking a bath was the 
biggest water user, with about 66 gallons of water, followed by 
washing dishes (almost 50 gallons if you kept the water running), 
doing a load of laundry, taking a shower, brushing your teeth and 
flushing the toilet. 

Ultimately, the students left the UEC that day with a better 
understanding that Folsom Lake needs to be shared, and the 
choices they make in their homes affects a broad range of parties. 

Later, Kerry said teaching the H2Own module is one of her passions. 
“Empowering students to help make a difference is what I love. 
When they understand the decisions they make affect us all, that 
really makes my day.” 

The mothers who accompanied the students had high praise for 
the UEC and the dedication of the interpreters who make learning 
come alive. Judiana, a mother of two, said the UEC was “unique, 
a real gem, one of the reasons we love living in Roseville. The 
interpreters are excellent and they do a wonderful job making 
complex issues easy to understand. I’ve lived in Denver, Colorado, 
and Valencia, California, before moving to Roseville in 2007, and I’ve 
never seen anything like it.”
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INVESTMENTS
THAT CREATE 
THE “FUTURE 
IS BRIGHT” 
MOMENTS
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As a utility, EU is proud of things we build. But we’re 
just as proud of our employees that build projects, 
manage assets and deliver services. 

One project we’re planning to build is an expansion of 
the Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant. Strong 
growth in the western part of Roseville and Placer 
County is creating the need to expand this 
regional plant.

But we’re not just expanding the Pleasant Grove Water 
Treatment Plant— we’re also building an anaerobic 
digester there to convert organic waste to renewable 
methane, the main ingredient in natural gas, which we 
could use to fuel our vehicles.   

Without this new anaerobic digester, organic waste 
would go to the local landfill, where it would emit 
methane gas that would worsen global climate 
change. Keeping harmful methane out of the 
atmosphere, and using it instead to power our trucks 
and cars, is another example of the win-win-win 
solutions we seek at Environmental Utilities.
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RECYCLING COMMERCIAL 
FOOD WASTE
Our Solid Waste Utility operates a specially 
designed commercial organic waste collection 
truck that stops three times a week at Nugget 
Market, each time collecting at least two cubic 
yards of food waste. For the next few years, 
the Solid Waste Utility will keep Nugget’s food 
waste out of landfills by transporting it to an 
anaerobic digester in Sacramento, where it will be 
converted to natural gas. 

The anaerobic digester at Pleasant Grove 
will be built in a few years. Currently, 
we are collecting commercial organic 
waste, mainly from grocery stores and 
restaurants, in a collection vehicle 
built specifically to collect this kind 
of waste and create fuel elsewhere. 

One of our customers, Nugget 
Market, is an enthusiastic 
partner. Jeremy Patin, the chain’s 
sustainability coordinator, said food 
waste accounts for about 50 percent 
of Nugget’s waste stream. Finding 
ways to keep food waste out of landfills 
is an important priority for this locally 
controlled grocer.

“We’re really happy with the organic food waste 
service we get from EU’s Solid Waste Utility,” he 
told us. “It’s one of the best city-run programs 
around. If we can’t donate unused food, we divert 
it to keep it out of landfills.” Nugget Market keeps 
its food waste out of landfills by turning it into 
compost, liquid fertilizer and biofuel.

We also power-wash the store’s collection bin to 
keep it from degrading. “We really appreciate the 
way EU’s Solid Waste Utility is helping us run a clean, 
environmentally responsible business,” Jeremy said. 
“They’re responsive to our needs, and they’re great 
at communicating when a schedule changes.”
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 We really appreciate 
the way EU’s Solid Waste 
Utility is helping us run 
a clean, environmentally 
responsible business.



STORMWATER PROGRAM 
IMPROVES WATER QUALITY BY 
RESTORING CREEKS AND 
EDUCATING RESIDENTS

where residents can reduce the use of pesticides 
in their lawns and gardens. Bugs are eliminated 
through the use of less-toxic alternatives such 
as physical barriers and other environmentally 

friendly materials. IPM does the same 
job as pesticides, but with fewer 

negative environmental 
consequences.

Delyn explained, 
“Laboratory analysis 
of stormwater 
discharges into local 
creeks has shown 
that rain and over-
irrigation wash a 

lot of fertilizer and 
pesticides off lawns 

and gardens, through 
our stormwater system 

and into local creeks. It 
would be very expensive to 

build a treatment plant to remove 
those contaminants from all that water, 
so we are instead looking at ways to keep 
contaminants out of it in the first place.”

The integrated pest management program is 
still a new concept to many Roseville residents, 
but Stormwater employees are confident that 
with enough outreach, residents will begin 
to understand and implement less-toxic 
alternatives to pesticides and fertilizers.
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Another important investment in the city’s 
infrastructure is taking place in our Stormwater 
Program, where staff is working with the 
community and local non-profit groups to 
restore the riparian ecosystem.

“One way we’re working 
with the community to 
improve the ecosystem 
is partnering with 
groups to adopt a 
creek,” said Senior 
Engineer Delyn 
Ellison-Lloyd. “We 
create formalized 
partnerships with 
community groups 
to organize work days 
to pick up trash, plant 
native species of plants 
and remove invasive plants 
along the creeks.”

To comply with the State-issued stormwater 
discharge permit and its associated pesticide 
discharge limitations, the Stormwater Program 
sponsors another outreach effort called “Our 
Water, Our World.” Program materials are located 
in several of Roseville’s large home-improvement 
stores and local nurseries.

The Our Water, Our World program focuses on 
integrated pest management (IPM), a process 



INVESTING IN EMPLOYEES:
ALL ABOARD FOR THE
NEW EMPLOYEE BUS TOUR!
As proud as we are of investment in physical 
assets like interties, treatment plants and 
collection vehicles, we are prouder still of 
our employees, whose skills, dedication and 
creativity are vital to providing quality utility 
services to customers. 

In recent years, employees, particularly new 
ones, told us they were not getting the “big 
picture” of all EU did as a multi-utility service 
organization. Too often upon hiring, they quickly 
immersed themselves in the work tasks of their 
position. There was no time to understand how 
what they did fit into the larger portfolio of 
services EU offers. 
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In fiscal year 2016, EU formed a cross-functional 
team to improve onboarding of our new 
employees. The team was part of a broader, city-
wide Organizational Culture & Leadership (OC&L) 
initiative. Kelye McKinney leads EU’s OC&L 
initiative along with eight other EU employees.

One of the first things EU’s team proposed was 
to accomplish new EU employees on a day-
long bus tour of our facilities. The bus stopped 
at the UEC, water, wastewater, and solid waste 
facilities, where the new employees were met 
by a representative who discussed the facility’s 
processes and importance to the city.



On the bus, we consciously tried to sit a new 
employee in the Water Utility next to a new 
employee from the Wastewater Utility. The 
tour included opportunities to speak with the 
heads of all the utilities. The bus tour was an 
inexpensive and impactful way to structure 
cross-functional conversations and prevent 
the creation of organizational silos. 

It has been a huge success. We took 
about 10 new employees out on 
their first bus tour in May 2016, and 
a second bus tour took place in 
September 2016. Studies have shown 
that employees are happier if they 
understand how their work fits into a 
broader picture. New employees were 
able to put a face to a name, and associate 
specific people with specific EU services.

“The bus tour is one way we want to say we 
appreciate employees,” said Todd Jordan, P.E., 
a senior engineer in our Wastewater Utility. 
“The OC&L initiative has caused us to rethink 
the way we hire, onboard and train new 
employees.”

“The bus tour was really cool,” said Jeremy 
Snyder, an electronics technician at the 
Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(PGWWTP). “It was nice to see how all the 
different pieces fit together. I’ve lived here in 
Roseville for 23 years, and I didn’t even know 
the Utility Exploration Center existed. But 
when the bus tour stopped there and Rich 
Plecker talked about the programs it offered, 
I was hooked.” 

Jeremy said he plans to take his 10-year-old 
twins to the Exploration Center before too 
long. He might also take along his 11-year-old 
son and 16-year-old daughter.
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“The bus tour reinforced my view that I made the 
right decision to come to work here,”
Jeremy continued.

Another fan of the bus tour is Dave Eulberg, a 
plant and equipment mechanic at PGWWTP. “The 
tour was awesome,” he said. “It showed how much 
management cared about the new employees. 
They showed us the life cycle of water and what we 
could do to increase the reliability of our
water resources.” 

A third PGWWTP employee, Jade Oliver, said, “I’m 
extremely thankful and grateful to be working here. 
“Information sharing is huge at EU. And you get a 
good feeling about your workplace when you are 
given an opportunity to get to know other new 
employees.”
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Public Utilities Commission
Environmental Utilities
Department City of Roseville, California

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds of the 
City of Roseville, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016,and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amer ica; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the prepa ration and fair 
presentation offinancial statements that are free from material misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assuranee a bout whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments,the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances,but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient a nd appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.



 
OPINIONS

In our opinion,the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,the financial 
position of the Funds of the City, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Fund  Financial Statements

As discussed in note 1, the financial statements present only the Funds of the City and do not purport to, and 
do not present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2016, the changes in its financial position, 
or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America . Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, the Funds of the City adopted new accounting guidance, 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application, and No. 82, Pension Issues-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67,No. 68, and No. 73, 
effective July 1,2015. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

OTHER MATTERS
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ame rica require that the schedule 
of proportionate share of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan net pension liability and schedule of pension 
contributions on pages 38 and 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries,the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assuranee.

Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information,a lthough not a part of the basic financia l statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part offinancial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropr iate operational,economic, or historical context Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.



OTHER INFORMATION

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Funds’ basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures,including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,the combining fund financial statements 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 17, 2017, 
on our consideration of the Funds’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws,regulations,contracts,and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the result of that testing,and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Funds’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

 

Sacramento, California 
January 17, 2017

2151 River Plaza Drive, Suite 308 Sacramento, CA 95833  | Tel: 916.570.1880 | Fax: 916.570.1875 | www.vtdcpa.com 



 
CITY OF ROSEVILLE ENVIRONMENTAL  

UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

Table of Contents 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION PAGE 
  
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1 
  
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
  

Statement of Net Position  4 
  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  6 
  

Statement of Cash Flows  7 
  
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 9 
  

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
  

Schedule of the Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds’ Proportionate  
  Share of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan Net Pension Liability 

 
38 

  
Schedule of Pension Contributions 39 
  

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
  
Combining Statement of Net Position 41 
  
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 43 
  
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 45 

  
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control of Financial Reporting and 
  On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
  Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 

47 
 



 

1 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Public Utilities Commission 
Environmental Utilities Department 
City of Roseville, California 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds of the City 
of Roseville, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Funds of the City, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
As discussed in note 1, the financial statements present only the Funds of the City and do not purport to, and do 
not present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2016, the changes in its financial position, or 
where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Implementation of New Accounting Standards 
 
As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, the Funds of the City adopted new accounting guidance, 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application, and No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, 
effective July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of 
proportionate share of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan net pension liability and schedule of pension contributions 
on pages 38 and 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Funds’ basic financial statements.  The combining fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The combining fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 17, 2017, on 
our consideration of the Funds’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Funds’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
January 17, 2017



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Water Wastewater Solid Waste Total
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 63,189,149$    48,898,635$    23,578,915$  135,666,699$    
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal 
  agents 9,347,196        -                       -                    9,347,196          

Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 5,032,819        4,891,373        2,765,490      12,689,682        
Accrued interest 143,871           95,955             47,218           287,044             
Due from other government agencies 208,752           718,899           -                    927,651             

Inventories 427,070           72,989             53,424           553,483             
Total Current Assets 78,348,857      54,677,851      26,445,047    159,471,755      

Noncurrent Assets:
Investments in SPWA reserves -                       72,383,339      -                    72,383,339        
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 11,408,311      19,325,640      577,813         31,311,764        
Capital assets being depreciated, net 465,525,417    550,840,502    3,701,644      1,020,067,563   

Total Noncurrent Assets 476,933,728    642,549,481    4,279,457      1,123,762,666   
Total Assets 555,282,585    697,227,332    30,724,504    1,283,234,421   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 2,385,742        -                       -                    2,385,742          
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging 
  derivative -                       7,105,783        -                    7,105,783          
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,449,848        1,578,660        877,500         3,906,008          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,835,590$      8,684,443$      877,500$       13,397,533$      
 

(Continued) 
 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
 

5 

Water Wastewater Solid Waste Total
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 320,166$         935,420$         696,946$       1,952,532$        
Accrued liabilities 924,675           2,545,651        418,738         3,889,064          
Due to other government agencies -                       1,002,493        -                    1,002,493          
Current portion of compensated absences 518,324           508,768           217,104         1,244,196          
Current portion of long-term debt 2,255,000        2,457,151        -                    4,712,151          
Deposits 44,500             -                       -                    44,500               
Unearned revenue -                       -                       35,340           35,340               

Total Current Liabilities 4,062,665        7,449,483        1,368,128      12,880,276        

Long-Term Liablities:
Long-term debt, non-current portion 44,127,501      85,495,035      -                    129,622,536      
Landfill closure and post closure liability -                       -                       1,999,776      1,999,776          
Compensated absences 1,086,119        1,216,722        534,232         2,837,073          
Derivative at fair value -                       7,105,783        -                    7,105,783          
Net pension liability 15,328,586      16,255,065      8,753,659      40,337,310        

Total Long-Term Liabilities 60,542,206      110,072,605    11,287,667    181,902,478      
Total Liabilities 64,604,871      117,522,088    12,655,795    194,782,754      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,053,287        1,077,745        554,532         2,685,564          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 432,936,969    482,213,956    4,279,457      919,430,382      
Restricted for debt service 4,134,075        4,829,982        -                    8,964,057          
Unrestricted 56,388,973      100,268,004    14,112,220    170,769,197      

Total Net Position 493,460,017$  587,311,942$  18,391,677$  1,099,163,636$ 

 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
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See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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Water Wastewater Solid Waste Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 22,692,348$      34,357,622$      21,769,252$ 78,819,222$      
Other 268,170             53,782               634,100        956,052             

Total Operating Revenues 22,960,518        34,411,404        22,403,352   79,775,274        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 13,923,622        18,896,554        16,899,117   49,719,293        
Administration 2,508,961          477,205             629,141        3,615,307          
Depreciation and amortization 8,548,657          11,856,087        328,840        20,733,584        

Total Operating Expenses 24,981,240        31,229,846        17,857,098   74,068,184        
Operating Income (Loss) (2,020,722)         3,181,558          4,546,254     5,707,090          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and rents revenue 832,803             477,274             233,499        1,543,576          
Interest and fiscal charges (expense) (1,401,054)         (3,541,652)         (2,834)           (4,945,540)         
Cost of issuance (448,220)            -                         -                    (448,220)            
Gain (loss) from sale of property (12,732)              (15,178)              -                    (27,910)              
Subventions and grants 1,230,309          -                         68,777          1,299,086          
Increase (decrease) in SPWA reserves -                         89,962               -                    89,962               

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 201,106             (2,989,594)         299,442        (2,489,046)         

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 
  and Transfers (1,819,616)         191,964             4,845,696     3,218,044          

Capital contributions - connection/impact fees 6,415,949          6,964,269          471,458        13,851,676        
Capital contributions from developers and 
others 14,374,340        13,564,613        -                    27,938,953        
Transfers in 2,155,023          1,389,435          27,068          3,571,526          
Transfers (out) (5,672,371)         (4,995,164)         (3,977,590)    (14,645,125)       

Total contributions and transfers 17,272,941        16,923,153        (3,479,064)    30,717,030        

Change in Net Position 15,453,325        17,115,117        1,366,632     33,935,074        

Total net position-beginning, as restated 478,006,692      570,196,825      17,025,045   1,065,228,562   
Total net position-ending 493,460,017$    587,311,942$    18,391,677$ 1,099,163,636$ 
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Water Wastewater Solid Waste Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 22,090,361$    34,202,873$   21,726,650$  78,019,884$   
Payments to suppliers (8,738,012)      (12,826,363)    (11,662,338)   (33,226,713)    
Payments to employees (8,731,496)      (6,635,866)      (5,801,874)     (21,169,236)    
Other receipts 268,169           53,782            634,100         956,051          

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
  Operating Activities 4,889,022        14,794,426     4,896,538      24,579,986     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Subventions and grants 1,033,085        -                      68,777           1,101,862       
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                      (838,301)         -                     (838,301)         
(Increase) decrease in due to other funds 5,810               58,441            (114,512)        (50,261)           
(Increase) decrease in advances to other funds 1,585,418        -                      -                     1,585,418       
(Increase) decrease in advances from other funds (243,150)         -                      -                     (243,150)         
Transfers in 2,155,023        1,389,435       27,068           3,571,526       
Transfers (out) (5,672,371)      (4,995,164)      (3,977,590)     (14,645,125)    

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital 
  Financing Activities (1,136,185)      (4,385,589)      (3,996,257)     (9,518,031)      

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (884,841)         (5,603,827)      (283,932)        (6,772,600)      
Proceeds from sale of capital assets (1,167)             -                      -                     (1,167)             
Issuance of debt 2,321,173        -                      -                     2,321,173       
Issuance of costs (448,220)         -                      -                     (448,220)         
Principal payments on capital debt -                      (2,489,559)      -                     (2,489,559)      
Interest paid on capital debt (1,401,054)      (3,377,719)      (2,834)            (4,781,607)      
Connection fees 6,415,949        6,964,269       471,458         13,851,676     

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Capital and 
  Related Financing Activities 6,001,840        (4,506,836)      184,692         1,679,696       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and rents received 833,218           462,368          230,110         1,525,696       
Receipts from sale of (payment to acquire) 
  investments, net (4,799,591)      -                      -                     (4,799,591)      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities (3,966,373)      462,368          230,110         (3,273,895)      

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
  equivalents 5,788,304        6,364,369       1,315,083      13,467,756     

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 57,400,845      42,534,266     22,263,832    122,198,943   
Cash and equivalents at end of period 63,189,149$    48,898,635$   23,578,915$  135,666,699$ 

 
(Continued) 
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Water Wastewater Solid Waste Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) (2,020,722)$    3,181,558$     4,546,254$    5,707,090$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 
  cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 8,548,657        11,856,087     328,840         20,733,584     
Net pension liability and related amounts (339,302)         (368,501)         (204,445)        (912,248)         

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (612,084)         (178,788)         (46,665)          (837,537)         
Prepaids 72,057             -                      -                     72,057            
Inventories 22,720             (68,294)           70,362           24,788            
Accounts and other payables (782,304)         372,364          202,073         (207,867)         
Unearned revenue -                      -                      119                119                 

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 4,889,022$      14,794,426$   4,896,538$    24,579,986$   

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Transfer of capital assets from other funds 206,513$         210,798$        40,041$         457,352$        
Contribution of Capital Assets 14,168,161$    13,353,148$   27,521,309$   
Amortization of bond premium 137,959$         201,973$        339,932$        
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding (37,076)$         (37,076)$         
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
A. General 
 

The City of Roseville – Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds (Funds) are enterprise funds of the City of 
Roseville (City) that own and operate the water, wastewater, and solid waste systems and provide these 
services to the businesses and residents of the City.  The Funds are under the policy control of the City 
Council.  The accompanying financial statements only reflect the activity of the Funds.  The Funds are an 
integral part of the City and the Funds’ financial statements are included in the basic financial statements of 
the City. 

 
B. Basis of Presentation 
 

The financial statements of the Funds are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by 
governmental entities in the United States of America. 

 
The Funds include the following funds: 

 
Water Funds – These funds account for all financial transactions relating to the City’s Water service.  
Services are on a user charge basis to residents and business owners located in Roseville.  The Water Funds 
include the Water Operations, Water Construction, Water Rehabilitation, Water Meter Retrofit, Water Rate 
Stabilization and Water Engineering Funds. 
 
Wastewater Funds – These funds account for all financial transactions relating to the City’s Wastewater 
Collection and Treatment.  Services are on a user charge basis to residents and business owners located in 
Roseville.  The Wastewater Funds include the Wastewater Operations, Wastewater Construction, 
Wastewater Rehabilitation and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Funds. 
 
Solid Waste Funds – These funds account for all financial transactions relating to the City’s Solid Waste 
service.  Services are on a user charge basis to residents and business owners located in Roseville.  The 
Solid Waste Funds include the Solid Waste Operations, Solid Waste Capital Purchases, Solid Waste 
Rehabilitation and Solid Waste Rate Stabilization Funds. 

 
C. Basis of Accounting 
 

The Funds are accounted for as enterprise funds (proprietary fund type).  A fund is an accounting entity with a 
self-balancing set of accounts established to record the financial position and results of operations of a 
specific governmental activity.  The activities of enterprise funds closely resemble those of the private sector 
in which the purpose is to conserve and add to economic resources.  Enterprise funds account for operations 
that provide services on a continuous basis and are substantially financed by revenues derived from user 
charges. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual 
basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Cash and Investments 
 

Cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less are treated as cash and equivalents for 
purpose of preparing the statements of cash flows.  Also, each Fund’s portion of the City’s overall cash and 
investment pool is treated as cash and equivalents since these amounts are in substance demand deposits.  
Further information related to the City’s cash and investment pool can be found in the City’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 

 
E. Prepaids 
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in the financial statements. 
 

F. Inventories 
 

Inventories are valued at cost, using the weighted-average method and consist primarily of merchandise held 
for internal consumption. 

 
G. Deposits from Customers 
 

Deposits from Customers may be required by the Funds from commercial and residential customers when 
they establish their account as specified in section 14.04.030 of the City’s Municipal Code.  Significant 
customer deposits may be held in the form of certificates of deposit, in the City’s name with the interest paid 
to the customer. 

 
H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  The Funds 
have three items that qualify for reporting in this category.  A deferred charge on refunding results from the 
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  The accumulated decrease in the fair 
value of hedging derivatives is equal to the fair value of the associated derivative instrument liability so long 
as the instrument is deemed effective under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 53.  The deferred outflows 
related to pensions are contributions made to the pension plan subsequent to the measurement of the net 
pension liability and are described in note 7. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  Deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time.  The Funds has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  The deferred inflows related to 
pensions are described in note 7. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
I. Revenue Recognition and Classification of Revenues 
 

Revenues are recognized when earned based on cycle billings rendered to customers.  All residential and 
commercial utility customers are billed once per month.  There are twenty-three billing cycles per month which 
include all types of customers, based on their location within the City.  Revenues for services provided but not 
billed at the end of a fiscal year are accrued. 
 
Contributions of cash or assets to proprietary funds from state and federal agencies, developers and others 
are recorded as revenue when earned. 
 
Operating revenues consist mainly of charges for services.  Operating revenues are used to finance the cost 
of operations, including the cost of delivering and providing services, maintenance and recurring capital 
replacement.  All other revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

 
J. Compensated Absences 

 
Compensated Absences including accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefits are 
accounted for as expenses in the year earned. 
 
Changes in compensated absences payable in the Funds consist of the following: 
 

Beginning Balance 3,849,898$  

Additions 827,564       

Payments (596,193)     

Ending Balance 4,081,269$  

Current Portion 1,244,196$  
 

K. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 

L. Fair Value Measurement 
 

As of July 1, 2015, the funds retrospectively applied GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application.  GASB Statement No. 72 provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for 
reporting purposes and applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value 
measurements.  The funds categorize the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is 
based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
M. Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s 
California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deductions from the plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis are they are reported by CalPERS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

N. New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

Effective in this Fiscal Year 
 

GASB Statement No. 72 – In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application.  The primary objective of this statement is to define fair value and describe how fair value should 
be measured, define what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and determine what 
information about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  The City has 
implemented this Statement effective July 1, 2015. 
 
GASB Statement No. 82 – In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.  This statement addresses issues regarding (1) 
the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of 
assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for 
financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee 
(plan member) contribution requirements.  The City has implemented this Statement effective July 1, 2015. 

 
Effective in Future Fiscal Years  

 
GASB Statement No. 74 – In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.  The objective of the Statement is to address the 
financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified 
criteria.  The Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the measurement of the 
OPEB liabilities for which assets have been accumulated.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning 
after June 15, 2016.  The City has not determined the effect of the statement.  
 
GASB Statement No. 75 – In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.  The objective of the Statement is to replace the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 45.  In addition, the Statement requires governments to report a liability 
on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB provided and requires governments to present more 
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities.  The 
Statement is effective for periods beginning June 15, 2017.  The City has not determined the effect of the 
statement. 

 
GASB Statement No. 77 – In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures.  
The Statement requires state and local governments to disclose information about tax abatement 
agreements.  The Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  The City has not 
determined the effect of the statement. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
N. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 

Effective in Future Fiscal Years (Continued)  
 

GASB Statement No. 78 – In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through 
Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans.  The objective of this Statement is to address a 
practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions.  This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  The City 
has not determined the effect of the Statement. 

 
GASB Statement No. 80 – In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for 
Certain Component Units – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14.  The objective of this Statement is to 
improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain 
component units.  This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.  The City 
has not determined the effect of this Statement.  
 
GASB Statement No. 81 – In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest 
Agreements.  The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable 
split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a 
government is a beneficiary of the agreement.  This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2016.  The City has not determined the effect of this Statement. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The City pools cash from all sources and all funds, except certain specific investments within funds and cash with 
fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual 
funds can make expenditures at any time. 
 
The City and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools.  Individual investments are 
evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, or by an electronic entry 
registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called the book entry system.  Individual 
investments are generally made by the City’s fiscal agents as required under its debt issues.  In order to maximize 
security, the City employs the trust department of a bank as the custodian of all City managed investments, 
regardless of their form. 
 
The City’s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting principles.  The City 
adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the 
effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year. 
 
A. Classification 
 

Cash and investments of the Funds are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on 
whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of City debt instruments or agreements. 

 
Cash and investments 135,666,699$   
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent 9,347,196         

Total Cash and Investments 145,013,895$   
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

A. Classification (Continued) 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following: 

 
Cash on hand 600$                 
City pooled cash and investments 135,666,099     
Investments 9,347,196         

Total Cash and Investments 145,013,895$   

 
 
B. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 

The City’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the following, 
provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the City; and approved percentages and maturities 
are not exceeded.  The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the 
City’s Investment Policy where it is more restrictive: 

 

Authorized Investment Type
Maximum
Maturity

Minimum 
Credit 

Quality at 
Time of 

Purchase

Maximum
Percentage

Allowed

Maximum
Investment

In One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations (A) 5 Years None None None
U.S. Agency (A) 5 Years None None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 Years None 20% None
Forward Delivery Agreements N/A A None None
Local Agency Bonds 5 Years None None None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days None 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days A-1 25% 10% (B)
Medium-Term Notes 5 Years A 30% None
Collateralized Time Deposits 5 Years None 30% None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years A 30% None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None $65 million/account
Insured Saving Accounts N/A None None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None 20% 10%
Shares in a California Common Law Trust N/A None None None
Interest Rate Swaps (C) N/A None None None

 
(A) In specified fund accounts where liquidity is not the primary investment objective, the maximum maturity 

can be up to ten years with granted express authority by the City Council.  Such investments cannot be 
made less than three months following the approval of extended investment terms.  All longer-term 
investments must be Federal Treasury or Agency securities.   

(B) Eligible Commercial Paper may not represent more than 10% of the outstanding paper of an issuing 
corporation. 

(C) Interest rate swaps may only be used in conjunction with enterprise fund debt or investments, not the 
General Fund. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
C. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents under the 
terms of certain debt issues.  These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be 
used if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues.  The California Government Code 
requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes.  
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents.  The 
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements: 

 
Maximum Minimum Credit

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quantity
U.S. Treasury Obligations N/A None
U.S. Agency Securities of Certain Agencies (A) (B) N/A None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAAm-G
Certificates of Deposit 360 days None to A-1
Savings Accounts' Deposit Accounts (fully insured) N/A None
Investment Agreements N/A A+ to AA
State or Municipality Bonds/Notes N/A One of two highest 

rating categories
Federal Funds or Bankers' Acceptances 270 days None to A-1
Commercial Paper 270 days A-1 to AA
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None
California Asset Management Program N/A None

 
(A) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by the Agency, 

provided they are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, as follows: 
a. Certificates of beneficial ownership of the Farmers Home Administration 
b. Federal Housing Administration debentures 
c. Participations certificates of the General Services Administration 
d. Guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds or guaranteed pass-through obligations of the 

Government National Mortgage Association 
e. Guaranteed Title XI financings of the U.S. Maritime Administration 
f. Project notes, local authority bonds, new communities debentures and U.S. 

public housing notes and bonds of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

 
(B) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any of the 

following non-full faith and credit of the U.S. government agencies: 
a. Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System 
b. Participation  certificates  and  senior  debt  obligations  of  the  Federal  Home  Loan 

Mortgage Corporation 
c. Mortgage-backed securities and senior debt obligations of the Federal National 

Mortgage Association 
d. Senior debt obligations of the Student Loan Marketing Association e.  Obligations of the 

Resolution Funding Corporation 
f. Consolidated system-wide bonds and notes of the Farm Credit System 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  The City also manages its interest rate risk by holding most investments to 
maturity, thus reversing unrealized market gains and losses. 

 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the investments (including investments held by bond 
trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the 
investments by maturity or earliest call date: 

 

12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 More than
or Less Months Months 60 Months Total

Investments held with fiscal agent:
Guaranteed Investment Contract -$                  -$                   -$                    3,918,125$     3,918,125$    
Money Market Mutual
    Funds (U.S. Securities) 5,429,071     -                     -                      -                      5,429,071      

Total Investments 5,429,071$   -$                   -$                    3,918,125$     9,347,196$    

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

 
 
E. Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 

 
All of the City’s investments in securities are held in the name of the City and held at the location of the City’s 
third party custodian. Therefore, the City is not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

F. Credit Risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  
Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2016, for each investment type as provided by Standard 
and Poor’s investment rating system: 

 
AAA/AAAm Total

Investments:
Money Market Mutual Funds
   (U.S. Securities) 5,429,071           5,429,071           

Not Rated:
Guaranteed Investment Contract 3,918,125           

Total Investments 9,347,196$         
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

G. Fair Value Measurements 
 
The Funds categorize their fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair 
value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.   
 
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, 
fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the valuation.  The City’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements 
requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability. 

 
The Funds have the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016: 
 
Money Market Funds - Net Asset Value 5,429,071$       
Guaranteed Investment Contract - Amortized Cost 3,918,125         

Total Investments not categorized 9,347,196$       

 
Pooled cash and investments  
 
The Fund’s cash balance was pooled with various other City funds for deposit and investment purposes.  The 
City’s treasury is responsible for the cash management of the Fund’s cash balance, which pools available 
cash for investment purposes.  Each City fund owns a share of pooled cash and investments, which are 
separately maintained, and interest income was apportioned based on its average month-end cash balances 
to the total of the pooled cash and investments. 
 
The Fund’s pooled cash and investments balance at June 30, 2016 is $135,666,699.  The deposit and 
investment disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, are 
reported in the annual report of the City.  The Fund recognizes its position in the City investment pool at fair 
value based on information provided by the City.  Deposits and withdrawals to the pool are made on the basis 
of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the inputs used to measure fair value are uncategorized and not defined 
as Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3.  Additional information regarding interest rate risk, concentration of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk and fair value measurements of the City’s pooled cash and investments is presented in 
the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
A. Transfers Among Funds and with the City 

 
With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one fund to another.  Transfers between funds 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 

Amount
Fund Receiving Transfers Fund Making Transfers Transferred

Water Operations Water Engineering 196,932$            (A)

Wastewater Operations 616,195              (A), (B), (C) 

Solid Waste Operations 615,862              (A), (B) 

Water Construction Water Operations 133,421              (B)

Water Rehabilitation Water Operations 3,848,796           (D)

Wastewater Rehabilitation 1,827                  (D)

Water Engineering 25,000                (D)

Water Rate Stabilization Water Operations 3,650,000           (B)

Water Engineering Water Operations 1,427,312           (A)

Wastewater Operations 791,456              (A), (B)

Solid Waste Operations 129,683              (B)

Wasterwater Operations Water Operations 649,422              (D)

Water Rehabilitation 49,382                
Wastewater Rehabilitation 32,921                (B)

Solid Waste Operations 649,402              (D)

Wastewater Rehabilitation Water Rehabilitation 39,479                (D)

Wastewater Operations 6,891,566           (B)

Water Construction 875                     

Wastewater Rate Stabilization Wastewater Operations 650,000              (B)

Solid Waste Operations Solid Waste Impact Fee 8,367                  
Water Constuction 8,367                  
Wastewater Operations 333                     
Wastewater Rehabilitation 8,367                  

Solid Waste Rehabilitation Solid Waste Operations 464,647              (B)

Utility Exploration Fund 10,000                

Solid Waste Rate Stabilization Solid Waste Operations 350,000              (B)

City of Roseville General Fund Water Operations 2,919,877           (A), (B), (D) 

Water Construction 221,576              (A), (D)

Water Rehabilitation 20,268                (A)

Water Meter Retrofit 612                     (A)

Water Rate Stabilization 733                     (A)

Water Engineering 263,384              (A)

Wastewater Operations 2,202,680           (A), (B), (D) 

Wastewater Construction 460                     (A)

Wastewater Rehabilitation 154,548              (A), (C) 

Wastewater Rate Stabilization 1,279                  (A)

Solid Waste Operation 1,835,154           (A), (B), (D) 

Solid Waste Impact Fee Fund 3,542                  (A)

Solid Waste Rehabilitation 3,983                  (A)

City of Roseville Non-Major Governmental Funds Water Operations 870,667              (C) 

Water Rehabilitation 173,912              (C) 

Wastewater Operations 802,709              (C) 

Wastewater Rehabilitation 107,756              (C) 

Solid Waste Operations 417,612              (C) 

Solid Waste Rehabilitation 81,566                (D)

City of Roseville Internal Service Funds Water Operations 363,707              (A)

Water Meter Retrofit 15,292                (A)

Water Engineering 74,818                (A)

Wastewater Operations 471,486              (A)

Solid Waste Operations 237,597              (A)

Total Intrafund Transfers 32,494,830$       

Intrafund Eliminations (17,849,705)        
Total 14,645,125         

 
(A)  To pay for indirect costs 
(B)  To fund utility impact reimbursement or capital projects 
(C)  To pay debt service 
(D)  To fund operations 
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NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Current Interfund Balances 

 
Current Interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid shortly after 
the end of the fiscal year.  At June 30, 2016, interfund balances comprised the following: 
 

Due from Other Funds Due to Other Funds Amount

Water Construction Water Rehabilitation 243,150$            (A)

Intrafund Eliminations (243,150)             
Total -$                        

(A)  Current portion of the advances mentioned in 3C below.
 

C. Long-Term Interfund Advances 
 
At June 30, 2016, the funds below had made advances which were not expected to be repaid within the next 
year. 
 

Fund Receiving Advance Fund Making Advance Amount

Water Rehabilitation Water Construction 1,588,840$         
Intrafund Eliminations (1,588,840)          
Total -$                        

 
Water Rehabilitation advance bears interest of 2.42%.  It will be repaid over a period of 20 years ending in 
2023. 

 
 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A. Policies 
 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 
available.  Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value on the date 
contributed.  The City has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital assets, which include roads, 
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems. 
 
Capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.  The purpose of 
depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these assets.  The 
amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of the cost of capital 
assets. 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 

A. Policies (Continued) 
 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its 
expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated.  
The City has assigned the useful lives and capitalization thresholds listed below to capital assets: 

 
Capitalization

Useful Lives Thresholds
Buildings 20-40 years no threshold
Improvements 40 years no threshold
Machinery and Equipment 3-12 years 5,000                
Flood Control Improvements 75 years no threshold
Plants and Substations:

Sewer 15-60 years no threshold
Water 15-75 years no threshold

Distribution Systems:
Sewer 75 years no threshold
Water 75 years no threshold

 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred 
during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest 
earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
B. Capital Asset Additions and Retirements 
 

Capital assets at June 30 comprise: 
 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2015 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2016

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 5,784,165$          -$                   -$                  -$                  5,784,165$          
Construction in progress 18,314,929          7,867,241      (188,691)       (465,880)       25,527,599          

Total Capial Assets Not Being Depreciated 24,099,094          7,867,241      (188,691)       (465,880)       31,311,764          

Capial assets, being depreciated:
Builidngs 4,427,870            -                     -                    -                    4,427,870            
Improvements 3,940,216            16,998           -                    178,537        4,135,751            
Machinery and equipment 10,068,475          178,235         -                    -                    10,246,710          
Flood control 8,830,439            -                     -                    -                    8,830,439            
Plants and substations 294,494,704        -                     -                    200,824        294,695,528        
Distribution 1,008,336,113     26,501,554    (56,643)         543,871        1,035,324,895     

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 1,330,097,817     26,696,787    (56,643)         923,232        1,357,661,193     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Builidngs (743,754)             (109,905)        -                    -                    (853,659)             
Imrprovements (404,608)             (115,522)        -                    -                    (520,130)             
Machinery and equipment (7,251,589)          (423,440)        -                    -                    (7,675,029)          
Flood control (412,087)             (117,739)        -                    -                    (529,826)             
Plants and substations (95,542,582)        (6,505,018)     -                    -                    (102,047,600)      
Distribution (212,041,491)      (13,955,485)   29,590          -                    (225,967,386)      

Total Accumulated Depreciation (316,396,111)      (21,227,109)   29,590          -                    (337,593,630)      

Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated 1,013,701,706     5,469,678      (27,053)         923,232        1,020,067,563     

Environmental Utilties Enterprise Funds Capital Assets, ne 1,037,800,800$   13,336,919$  (215,744)$     457,352$      1,051,379,327$   

During fiscal year 2016, the City transferred construction in progress related to the Enterprise Asset 
Management system in the amount of $457,352 to the Funds. 

 
C. Depreciation Allocation 

 
Depreciation expense is charged to individual enterprise funds based on their usage of the related assets.  
The amount allocated to each individual fund is as follows: 
 

Water Operations 6,523,268$   
Water Construction 1,625,987     
Water Rehabilitation 215,675        
Water Meter Retrofit 472,025        
Water Engineering 3,255            
Wastewater Operations 4,966,668     
Wastewater Construction 6,556,797     
Wastewater Rehabilitation 534,594        
Solid Waste Operations 241,408        
Solid Waste Capital Purchases 41,615          
Solid Waste Rehabilitation 45,817          

Total Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds 21,227,109$ 
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The Funds generally incur long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets, which will have useful lives 
equal to or greater than the related debt. 
 
A. Current Year Transactions and Balances 
 

Original Issue Balance Balance Current
Amount June 30, 2015 Additions Retirements June 30, 2016 Portion

Certificates of Participation:
2007 Water Utility Revenue,

  4.0-5.0%, due 12/1/27 53,695,000$        40,465,000$   -$                  (40,465,000)$ -$                      -$                   
  Add: bond premium 2,759,170            1,655,502       -                    (1,655,502)     -                        -                     

2015 Water Utility Revenue
2.00% - 5.00%, due 12/1/29 42,565,000 -                      42,565,000   (2,650,000)     39,915,000       2,255,000      
Add: bond premium 6,759,055   -                      6,759,055     (291,554)        6,467,501         -                     

Total Certificates of Participation 105,778,225        42,120,502     49,324,055   (45,062,056)   46,382,501       2,255,000      

Revenue Bonds:
2011 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series C

1.00-5.25%, due 11/1/25 36,315,568          33,681,775     -                    (2,287,586)     31,394,189       2,457,151      
Add: bond premium 2,839,017            2,221,700       -                    (201,973)        2,019,727         -                     

2013 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds
   variable rate, due 11/1/35 36,582,878          36,582,878     -                    -                     36,582,878       -                     
2014 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds

variable rate, due 6/30/30 17,955,392          17,955,392     -                    -                     17,955,392       -                     

Total Revenue Bonds 93,692,855          90,441,745     -                    (2,489,559)     87,952,186       2,457,151      

Total Environmental Utilities Enterprise Funds Debt: 199,471,080$      132,562,247$ 49,324,055$ (47,551,615)$ 134,334,687$   4,712,151$    

 
B. 2007 Water Utility Revenue Certificates of Participation 
 

The City issued Certificates of Participation in the original principal amount of $53,695,000 on October 16, 
2007, to refund the remaining balance of 1997 Water Utility Revenue Certificates of Participation, and to 
finance the acquisition and the construction of certain capital improvements and additions to the City’s Water 
Utility System.  During the year, the 2007 Water Utility Revenue COPs were refunded by the 2015 Water 
Utility Revenue COPs as described below. 
 

C. 2015 Water Utility Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation 
 

On August 20, 2015, the Roseville Finance Authority issued the Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, 
Series 2015, in the principal amount of $42,565,000 to refund the 2007 Water Utility Certificates of 
Participation.  The Bonds bear interest at 2.00% to 5.00% and are due semi-annually on December 1 and 
June 1 of each year.  The Bonds are repayable by a pledge of net revenue from the Water Utility System.  
Principal payments are due annually on December 1 through 2030.  The refunding resulted in an overall debt 
service savings of $3,915,638.  The net present value of the debt service savings is called an economic gain 
and amounted to $2,791,937.  The refunding resulted in a deferred loss on refunding of $1,940,826 that is 
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and will be amortized over the life of the refunded bonds. 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was $54,205,300.  As 
disclosed in the official statement, all net revenues of the Water Utility System are expected to provide 
coverage over debt service of 120% over the life of the bonds.  For fiscal year 2016 net revenues amounted 
to $11,589,408 which represented coverage of 285% over the $4,073,306 in debt service. 
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
D. 2011 South Placer Wastewater Authority Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series A, B, C, and D 
 

On April 7, 2011, the South Placer Wastewater Authority (Authority) issued Variable Rate Demand Refunding 
Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series 2011A and 2011B in the original principal amounts of $30,165,000 and 
$30,160,000, respectively, and Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2011C and 2011D (SIFMA Index Bonds) in 
the original principal amount of $67,040,000 and $30,000,000, respectively.  The City’s share of this 
obligation was determined to be 54.17% when the bonds were issued.  The Authority amended the Funding 
Agreement and the members entered into a Reallocation and Repayment Agreement during fiscal year 2012 
which changed the proportionate share of the member obligations prospectively effective October 1, 2012.  
As a result, the City’s share of the obligation increased to 61.66% and the liabilities for the 2011C and 2011D 
Bonds were increased $4,819,815 and $2,247,000, respectively. 
 
The Series 2011ABCD Bonds were issued to refund the remaining outstanding balance of the 2008 South 
Placer Wastewater Authority Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series A and Series B.  During fiscal 
year 2013, the 2011A and 2011B Bonds were refunded by the 2013 South Placer Wastewater Authority 
Refunding Wastewater Bonds.  During fiscal year 2015, the 2011D Bonds were refunded by the Wastewater 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. 
 
The 2011C Bonds bear interest at 1.00%-5.25% and are due semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of 
each year.  The Bonds are repayable solely from the Authority Revenues.  Principle payments are due 
annually November 1 through 2025. 

 
E. 2013 South Placer Wastewater Authority Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds 

 
On April 1, 2013, the Authority issued Variable Rate Demand Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 
2013, in the original principal amount of $59,330,000.  The City’s share of this obligation was determined to 
be 61.66%.  The 2013 Bonds were issued to refund the remaining outstanding balance of the 2011 South 
Placer Wastewater Authority Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series A and B. 
 
The 2013 Bonds were issued as variable rate securities with interest calculated monthly equal to the LIBOR 
Index Rate.  The LIBOR Index Rate is defined in the Indenture to mean the per annum rate of interest 
established on each Computation Date (monthly) and effective on each related LIBOR  Index  Reset  Date  
equal  to  the  sum  of  the  Applicable  Spread  (initially  0.625%,  but adjustable based on the credit rating of 
the Roseville Finance Authority’s long-term unenhanced debt secured or evidenced by a parity obligation) 
plus the product of the LIBOR Index multiplied by the Applicable Factor (initially 70.5%).  The interest rate of 
the Bonds cannot exceed 12% per year and may be converted by the Authority into a Daily Rate, a Weekly 
Rate, a Long-Term Rate, a Commercial Paper Rate, or a subsequent Index Rate, subject to certain conditions 
defined in the Indenture.  The interest rate at June 30, 2016 was 0.870%.  The bonds are subject to 
mandatory redemption annually beginning November 1, 2029 through 2035. 
 
The Authority originally entered into a 19 year interest rate swap agreement for the entire amount of the 
2008B Bonds, and as part of the issuance of the 2011 ABCD Bonds, the swap agreement was amended and 
remains in effect, but the notional amount of the swap is based on the notional amount of the 2008 B Bonds.  
The interest rate swap agreement remains outstanding after the refunding and issuance of the 2013 Bonds, 
and the notional amount of the swap continues to be based on the notional amount of the 2008B Bonds.  The 
combination of the variable rate bonds and the floating rate swap creates a synthetic fixed-rate debt for the 
Authority.  The synthetic fixed rate for the 2011 C, 2013 Bonds and the 2014 Bonds at June 30, 2016 was 
4.13%. 
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

E. South Placer Wastewater Authority Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 
 
On August 7, 2014, the Authority issued the Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, in the 
amount of $29,120,000 to refund the Authority’s Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011D.  The 
City's share of the obligation is 61.66%, or $17,955,392. 
 
The 2014 Bonds were issued as SIFMA Index Bonds and the interest rate is the rate of the SIFMA index, 
adjusted weekly, plus a spread of .33%.  The SIFMA Municipal Swap Index, represents a seven-day high-
grade market index composed of selected tax-exempt variable-rate demand obligations meeting specific 
criteria.  The SIFMA Index is calculated weekly and released each Wednesday afternoon.  If at any time the 
SIFMA Index is not available, there will be used in its place such index as the Trustee, following consultation 
with the Authority and the Calculation Agent, as applicable for the applicable Interest Rate Period, from time 
to time determines most closely approximates the SIFMA Index.  The SIFMA Index Rate is defined as a per 
annum rate equal to the weighted average of the SIFMA Index in effect for each day in the Interest Period, 
which is the period from and including each interest payment date for such Series 2014 Bonds. 
 
Interest on the Series 2014 Bonds is payable on the first business day of each month, commencing 
September 2, 2014.  Principal payments are due annually beginning November 3, 2025 through 2029. 
 
The Series 2004 Bonds are secured by a pledge of Authority Revenues, which include all amounts received 
by, or entitled to be received by, the Authority from the Participants (consist of the City, SPMUD and Placer 
County) under provisions of the Funding Agreement.  The Authority Revenues generally exclude Regional 
Connection Fees and amount held in the Rate Stabilization Fund, unless certain conditions are met. 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 2011 Series C, the 2013 
Bonds and the 2014 Bonds was $107,320,040.  As disclosed in the Indenture, net revenues of the respective 
systems of the members are expected to provide coverage over debt service of 110% over the lives of the 
Bonds; however, the Funding Agreement established a Rate Stabilization Account to be used for the payment 
of debt service on the Bonds and other costs of the Authority.  As discussed in Note 16, the members’ 
monthly contributions of regional connection fees are deposited into the Rate Stabilization Account, and the 
Authority pays the debt service and other costs from the Account, based on each member’s proportionate 
share.  For fiscal year 2016, $5,667,057 in debt service was paid from the Rate Stabilization Account. 
 

F. Interest Rate Swap Agreement 
 
The City has a 61.66% interest in the Authority which entered into an interest swap agreement in connection 
with the 2008 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series B.  The Authority amended the swap with the 
issuance of the 2013 Bonds, but the swap continues to be based on the notional amount of the 2008 B 
Bonds. 
 
This transaction allows the City to create synthetic fixed rates on the Revenue Bonds, protecting it against 
increases in short-term interest rates.  The terms, fair value and credit risk of the swap agreement are 
disclosed below. 
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

F. Interest Rate Swap Agreement (Continued) 
 
Terms.  The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swap, as of June 30, 2016, are 
included below.  The swap agreement contains scheduled reductions to the outstanding notional amount that 
are expected to follow scheduled reductions in the associated bond issue. 
 

Fixed Variable
Notional Effective Credit Rate Rate Termination

Related Bond Issue Amount Date Counterparty Rating Paid Received Date
2011 Refunding Wastewater
Revenue Bonds, Series C
and D and 2013 Refunding
Wasterwater Revenue Bonds 62% of 1m
(based on notional amount of 9/17/2003, LIBOR
2008 Refunding Wastewater amended Morgan Stanley plus 26
Revenue Bonds, Series B) 48,356,855$       (A) 4/10/2008 Capital Services, Inc. A- 3.665% bps 11/1/2027

 
(A) The Authority’s swap agreement is based on the notional amount of $78,425,000 related to the 2008B 

Bond.  The City’s share of these underlying Bonds is 61.66%, or $48,356,855.  Only the City’s portion of 
the swap agreement is shown above, since the City was only obligated for that portion of the Authority’s 
bonds. 

 
Based on the swap agreements, the City owes interest calculated at a fixed rate to the counterparty of the 
swap.  In return, the counterparty owes the City interest based on the variable rate that approximates the rate 
required by the associated Bonds.  Debt principal is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the swap 
receipts and payments are calculated. 

 
Fair value. Fair value of the swaps takes into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment, the 
specific terms and conditions of each transaction and any upfront payments that may have been received.  
Hedging derivative instruments are classified as Level 2 and are valued using a discounted cash flow 
technique, which calculates the future net settlement payments, assuming that current forward rates implied 
by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates (LIBOR or SIMFA).  The payments are then 
discounted using the spot rates (LIBOR or SIMFA) implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-
coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap.  As of June 30, 2016, the fair value 
of the swaps was not in favor of the Funds as follows: 

 

Related Bond Issue 2016 2015
2011 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series C and D and 2013 
Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds (based on notional amount of 2008 
Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series B) (A) (7,105,783)$  (6,197,143)$  

Fair Value

 
(A) The Authority’s swap agreement is based on the notional amount of $78,425,000 equivalent to the 

notional balance on the 2008B Bonds.  The City share of these underlying Bonds was 61.66%, or 
$48,356,855.  Only the City’s portion of the fair value of the swap agreement is shown above, since the 
City is only obligated for that portion of the Authority’s 2011 and 2013 bonds. 
 

Credit risk.  Since the fair value of the swap is negative, the City is not currently exposed to credit risk.  The 
fair value may increase if interest rates increase in the future.  Should interest rates increase to the point 
where the fair value becomes positive, the City would be exposed to credit risk on the outstanding swap.  The 
City will be exposed to interest rate risk only if a counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated. 
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

F. Interest Rate Swap Agreement (Continued) 
 
Basis risk.  The risk that the interest rate paid by the City on the underlying variable rate bonds to the 
bondholders temporarily differs from the variable swap rates received from the applicable counterparty.  The 
City bears basis risk on the swap.  The swap has basis risk since the City receives a percentage of the LIBOR 
Index to offset the actual variable bond rates the City pays on the underlying Bonds.  The City is exposed to 
basis risk should the floating rate that it receives on a swap be less than the actual variable rate the City pays 
on the bonds.  Depending on the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected cost of the 
basis risk may vary. 
A portion of this basis risk is tax risk.  The City is exposed to tax risk when the relationship between the 
taxable LIBOR based swaps and tax-exempt variable rate bonds changes as a result of a reduction in federal 
and state income tax rates.  Should the relationship between LIBOR and the underlying tax-exempt variable 
rate bonds converge the City is exposed to this basis risk. 
 
Termination risk.  The City may terminate if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  
The City will be exposed to variable rates if the counterparty to the swap contract defaults or if the swap 
contract is terminated.  A termination of the swap contract may also result in the City’s making or receiving a 
termination payment based on market interest rates at the time of the termination.  If at the time of termination 
the swap has a negative fair value, the City would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the 
swap’s fair value. 

 
Rollover risk.  Rollover risk is the risk that the swap associated with a debt issue matures or may be 
terminated prior to the maturity of the associated debt.  When the swap terminates or a termination option is 
exercised by the counterparty, the City will be re-exposed to the risks being hedged by the swap.  The swap 
based on the 2008 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series B, associated with the 2011 C and D 
Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds and 2013 Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds, exposes the City 
to rollover risk because the swap terminates on November 1, 2027 while the 2011 C Bonds mature on 
November 1, 2025 and the 2011 D Bonds mature on November 1, 2014, and the 2013 Bonds mature on 
November 1, 2035. 
 
Swap payments and associated debt.  Using rates as of June 30, 2016, debt service requirements of the 
City’s outstanding swap-related variable-rate and fixed rate debt and net swap payments are as follows.  As 
rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.  These payments below 
are included in the Debt Service Requirements at June 30, 2016: 
 

For the Year
Ending Interest Rate

June 30, Principal Interest Swap, Net Total

2017 2,457,151$   2,076,891$   1,207,323$  5,741,365$     
2018 2,635,965     1,994,375     1,119,363    5,749,703       
2019 2,830,194     1,867,047     1,028,067    5,725,308       
2020 3,036,755     1,730,393     933,586       5,700,734       
2021 3,258,731     1,583,718     835,617       5,678,066       

2022-2026 19,965,508   5,262,468     2,578,584    27,806,560     
2027-2031 23,994,989   1,718,316     210,800       25,924,105     
2032-2036 27,753,166   583,261        -                   28,336,427     

Totals 85,932,459$ 16,816,469$ 7,913,340$  110,662,268$ 

Variable-Rate and Fixed Rate Bond
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

G. Debt Service Requirements 
 
Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt of the Funds: 
 

For the Year
Ending

June 30, Principal Interest

2017 4,712,151$       4,202,413$       
2018 4,965,965         4,005,991         
2019 5,265,194         3,762,030         
2020 5,596,755         3,492,277         
2021 5,953,731         3,201,495         

2022-2026 35,635,508       11,003,387       
2027-2031 35,964,989       4,574,862         
2032-2036 27,753,166       1,435,427         

Totals 125,847,459     35,677,882$     

Reconciliation of long-term debt
Add deferred bond premium 8,487,228         

Net long-term debt 134,334,687$   

 
 
H. Original Issue Discounts and Premiums 

 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

 
 
NOTE 6 – NET POSITION 
 
Net Position is the excess of a fund’s assets and deferred outflows of resources over all its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources.  Net Position is divided into three captions described below: 
 
Net investment in capital assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the current net book 
value of the capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these assets. 
 
Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of 
agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City cannot 
unilaterally alter.  These principally include debt service requirements. 
 
Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use. 
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description – The Funds participate and contribute to the City’s Miscellaneous Plan (Plan), an agent 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member 
employers.  Benefit provisions under the Plan is established by State statute and may be amended by City 
resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding 
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and 
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of total service are 
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability 
benefits after 10 years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death benefit, the 1957 
Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for each plan are 
applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows: 
 

Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 After January 1, 2013
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.0% - 2.7% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 23.506% 23.506%

Miscellaneous

Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective 
on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an 
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability.  The Funds are required to contribute the difference between the actuarially 
determined rate and the contribution rates of employees. 
 
Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, were 8.0% for the Classic Plan Members 
and 6.25% for the PEPRA Plan members.  The Funds’ proportionate share of the City’s contributions to the 
miscellaneous plan was $3,906,008 for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the Funds reported a combined net pension liability of $40,337,310 for its proportionate 
share of the City’s Plan’s net pension liability. 
 
The net pension liability of the Plan was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to 
June 30, 2015.  The Funds’ proportion of the City’s Plan’s net pension liability was based on the Funds’ fiscal year 
2016 contributions to the City’s Plan relative to the total contributions of the City has a whole.  The Funds’ 
proportionate share of the City’s miscellaneous pension plan net pension liability as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 
was 23.04% and 22.92%, respectively. 
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Funds recognized pension expense of $2,999,231.  At June 30, 2016, the 
Funds reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,906,008$           
Changes of assumptions (1,603,701)$         
Differences between expected and actual experience (297,161)              
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments (784,702)              
Total 3,906,008$           (2,685,564)$         

 
The amount of $3,906,008 reported in the Funds as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting 
from the Funds’ contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as a reduction to pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30
2017 (1,028,280)$         
2018 (1,028,280)           
2019 (989,592)              
2020 532,793                
2021 (172,205)              
Total (2,685,564)$         

 
Actuarial Assumptions – The Funds’ proportion of the City’s total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 
actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions. 
 

Miscellaneous
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3% - 14.2% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.65%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS membership data 

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
 

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation 
were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period of 1997 to 2011.  Further 
details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website. 
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
 
GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension 
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense.  The discount rate of 
7.50% used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was net of administrative expenses.  The discount rate of 
7.65% used for the June 30, 2015 measurement date is without reduction of pension plan administrative expense. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPERS took into account 
both short and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Such cash 
flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time 
and as scheduled in all future years.  Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound 
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a 
building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value 
of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both 
short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent 
rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  These 
geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation
Real Return 
Years 1 - 101

Real Return 
Years 11+2

Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2% -0.55% -1.05%
    Total 100%

1 – An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 – An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent.  The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that the Fund’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contributions rates and the employee rate.  Based on those assumptions, each pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Funds’ proportionate share of the City’s Miscellaneous Plan Net Pension Liability to 
Changes in the Discount Rate – The following presents the Funds’ proportionate share of the net pension 
liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Funds’ proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability 57,463,084$            

Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability 40,337,310$            

1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability 26,191,930$            

 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information the City’s collective net pension liability is available 
in the City’s separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The City’s financial statements 
may be obtained by contacting the City of Roseville’s Finance Department.  That report may also be obtained on 
the internet at www.roseville.ca.us. 
 
 

http://www.roseville.ca.us/
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NOTE 8 – POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 
 
The City provides medical benefits to substantially all retirees under the City of Roseville Other Post Employment 
Benefit Plan, a sole employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The City is responsible for establishing and 
amending the funding policy of the Plan. The Plan does not issue separate financial statements. As of June 30, 
2016, there were 596 City participants receiving these health care benefits. 
 
By Council resolution and through agreements with its labor units, the City provides certain health care benefits 
for retired employees under third-party insurance plans. A summary of eligibility and benefits offered are shown 
below: 
 
Eligibility Retire directly from the City under CalPERS

(age 50 (a) and 5 years of CalPERS service or disability retirement)

Benefit City paid premium, subject to the following caps:
Group 2016 2016

Management/Confidential 1,272$      Single 705$      
Stationary Engineers Local 39 1,284        Two Party 1,343     
Roseville Police Association 1,272        Family 1,727     
Roseville Police Officers Association 1,272        
Roseville Firefighters Association 1,272        Subject to vesting schedule
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers 1,272        CalPERS service Percent of Cap

Less than 10 years 0%
10 - 20 years 50%
20 years or more 100%

Five years City service required
100% vested if disabled

Benefit (continued) $720/month - subject to Tier 2 vesting schedule based on City ServicPEMHCA minimum
Employees contribute percent of payroll to PFM trust starting 2012: Roseville Health Savings Account:

Years of City Service Payroll % Employees contribute percent of payroll
1 1% to health savings account
2 2% Years of City Service Payroll %
3 3% 1 1%
4 4% 2 2%

5+ 5% 3 3%
4 4%

5+ 5%
City contribution of $100/month after 5 years
City service
Must retire from City to receive City health 
savings account contributions

Non-Represented Eligible for PEMHCA minimum only
Dental, Vision and Life None
Surviving Spouse Retiree medical benefit continues to surviving spouse if retire elects CalPERS survivor annuity.
Continuation

(a) Age 52 for Miscellaneous PEPRA employees.
(b) January 1, 2005 for Police Officers Association (sworn) and Local 39
(c) City must pay at least the PEMHCA minimum
(d) Eligible for PEMHCA minimum only

Tier 3 Non-RFFTier 3 RFF
Hired on or after January 1, 2012 Hired on or after January 1, 2014 (d)

Tier 1
Hired prior to January 1, 2004 (b)

Tier 2
Hired prior on or after January 1, 2004 (b)

City paid premium, subject to the following caps:
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NOTE 8 – POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation using the 
entry age normal actuarial cost method.  This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into account those 
benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued.  The actuarial assumptions 
included (a) 6.50% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary increase, (c) 3.00% of general 
inflation increase, and (d) a healthcare trend of declining annual increases ranging from 7.00% to 7.20% in 2017 
to 5.00% for years starting 2021.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth 
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  Actuarial 
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future.  The City’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of 
projected payroll, on a closed basis, using a 28 year amortization period with 26 years remaining. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost 
 
The Funds contributed $1,124,642, $1,091,797 and $1,027,446 toward the City’s annual OPEB cost for the years 
ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 respectively, which represented 27.78%, 36.48% and 35.61% of the annual 
required contribution, respectively. 
 
Disclosures related to the City’s postemployment health care benefit plan can be found in the City’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) available on the City’s website at www.roseville.ca.us. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Funds, as Funds of the City, are included in the City’s risk management program.  The City manages risk of 
loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; 
and natural disasters by participating in the public entity risk pools described below and by retaining certain risks. 
 
Public entity risk pools are formally organized and separate entities established under the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Act of the State of California.  As separate legal entities, those entities exercise full powers and 
authorities within the scope of the related Joint Powers Agreements including the preparation of annual budgets, 
accountability for all funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the right to sue and be sued.  Each risk 
pool is governed by a board consisting of representatives from member agencies.  Each board controls the 
operations of the respective risk pool, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, 
independent of any influence by member agencies beyond their representation on that board.  Obligations and 
liabilities of these risk pools are not the City’s responsibility. 
 
The contributions made to the risk pools below equal the ratio of their respective payrolls to the total payrolls of all 
entities participating in the same layer of each program, in each program year.  Actual surpluses or losses are 
shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage 
basis after a retrospective rating. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.roseville.ca.us/
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NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 
A. Risk Coverage 
 

General Liability, Property and Boiler and Machinery 
The City is a member of the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA) which covers 
general liability claims, property, and boiler and machinery losses.  Once the City’s Self-Insured Retention 
(SIR) is met, CJPRMA becomes responsible for payment of all claims up to the limit.  Financial statements for 
the risk pool and more information may be obtained from CJPRMA, 3201 Doolan Road, Suite 285, Livermore, 
California 94551. 

 
General Liability Coverage 
 
The City has a SIR of $500,000 per claim up to a $40,000,000 limit.  The City’s premium was $624,805. 

 
Property Coverage 
 
CJPRMA has purchased commercial insurance against property damage.  The City has a SIR of $25,000 per 
claim up to a $300,000,000 limit.  The City’s premium for coverage is $182,928. 
 
Boiler and Machinery Coverage 
 
CJPRMA has purchased commercial insurance against boiler and machinery claims.  The City has a SIR of 
$5,000 per claim up to a $21,250,000 limit.  The annual premium paid was $31,983. 

 
Fiduciary Coverage 
The City purchased fiduciary insurance specifically to cover the OPEB Trust.  The self-insured retention is 
$25,000 per claim up to a $3,000,000 limit.  The City’s premium for coverage is $34,056. 

 
Workers’ Compensation 
The City is also a member of the Local Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess Joint Powers Authority 
(LAWCX), which covers workers’ compensation claims up to $5,000,000 and has excess coverage through 
CSAC-EIA up to the statutory limit.  The City has a SIR of $350,000 per claim.  The City’s premium of 
$811,176 was for current year coverage plus $3,874 towards a 97/98 assessment and $26,837 towards a 
98/99 assessment.  The total premium charged to the City was $841,887. 
 
Financial statements for the risk pool and more information may be obtained from LAWCX, 1750 Creekside 
Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 95833. 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

35 

NOTE 10 – SOUTH PLACER WASTERWATER AUTHORITY 
 
The City is a member of the South Placer Wastewater Authority (SPWA), a joint powers agency which operates 
under a joint powers agreement among three public agencies, the City of Roseville, South Placer Municipal Utility 
District and Placer County.  The purpose of SPWA is to provide for the planning, financing, acquisition, 
ownership, construction and operation of the Regional Wastewater Facilities. 
 
Under the terms of a funding agreement, the City will own and operate the Regional Wastewater Facilities.  Under 
the terms of this agreement the member agencies will share the operating costs of the Facilities after construction 
is complete.  The Regional Wastewater Facilities include the Dry Creek Plant and the Pleasant Grove Plant.  In 
November 2000, the SPWA issued Revenue Bonds Series A and Series B in the original principal amounts of 
$109,775,000 and $70,000,000 respectively.  The purpose of these bonds is to partially finance the costs of 
acquisition and construction of the Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant.  On September 2003, the SPWA 
issued Refunding Revenue Bonds in the original principal amounts of $97,000,000.  The purpose of the 2003 
bonds is to advance refund the 2000 Revenue Bonds Series A.  On April 3, 2008, the SPWA issued Variable Rate 
Demand Refunding Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series 2008A and 2008B in the original principal amounts of 
$72,504,000 and $92,850,000 respectively.  The purpose of the 2008A bonds is to refund the remaining 
outstanding balance of the 2000 Revenue Bonds Series B.  The 2008B bonds were issued to refund the 
remaining outstanding balance of the 2003 Refunding Revenue Bonds and to advance refund the remaining 
outstanding balance of the 2000 Revenue Bonds Series A.  On April 7, 2011 the SPWA issued Refunding 
Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series A, B, C and D in the original principal amounts of $30,165,000, $30,160,000, 
$67,040,000 and $30,000,000, respectively.  The purpose of the 2011 Bonds was to refund the remaining 
outstanding balance of the 2008A and 2008B Bonds.  On April 1, 2013, the SPWA issued Refunding Wastewater 
Bonds, Series 2013, in the original principal amount of $59,330,000 to refund the outstanding balance of the 2011 
Series A and B Bonds.  The three agencies are responsible for the repayment of all of these Revenue Bonds.  
The City’s share of this obligation was originally 54.17%, but with the amendment to the funding agreement 
discussed below, the City’s obligation is now 61.66%.  As a result, this portion of the debt was recorded on the 
City’s financial statements, as discussed in Note 5. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the City paid $6,618,117 to SPWA based on connection fees collected 
during the fiscal year. 
 
The City records its share of income and expenses from SPWA in the Wastewater Enterprise Fund and these 
changes are reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  The members of 
the SPWA entered into an Amended and Restated Funding Agreement and a Reallocation and Repayment 
Agreement effective October 1, 2012.  The Amended and Restated Funding Agreement changed the 
proportionate shares of each member for the cost allocations and the City’s share was increased to 61.66%.  The 
City’s investment in SPWA Reserves at June 30, 2016, was $72,383,339. 
 
SPWA’s financial statements can be obtained from the City of Roseville, 311 Vernon Street, Roseville, California, 
95678. 
 
 



CITY OF ROSEVILLE 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

36 

NOTE 11 – MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE COSTS 
 
State and federal laws and regulations require that the City perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions 
at the Roseville sanitary landfill site, which is closed, through the year 2024.  Accordingly, the City has recorded a 
liability and expense in the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund for the estimated postclosure care cost.  The recorded 
amount is based on applicable state and local laws and regulations concerning closure and postclosure care.  If 
additional postclosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws or 
regulations, for example), these costs may result in increased charges to future landfill users or the usage of 
future tax revenues.  During fiscal year 2016, the changes of landfill closure liabilities were as follows: 
 

Beginning Balance 2,208,755$  
Deductions (208,979)     

Ending Balance 1,999,776$  

 
 
NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
2016 South Placer Wastewater Authority Wastewater Direct Purchase Bonds 
 
On October 1, 2016, the City of Roseville issued the 2016 South Placer Wastewater Authority Direct Purchase 
Bonds in the amount of $59,330,000 for the construction and expansion of wastewater treatment plants.  The 
bonds bear interest at a rate ranging from 2% to 5%.  Interest payments will be due on February 1 and August 1 
of each year, beginning February 2017.  Principal payments are due annually on August 1.  The Bonds mature on 
August 1, 2032.  The City is responsible for 61.66% of the debt, which amounts to $36,582,878. 
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2015 2016

Proportion of the City's miscellaneous plan net pension 
liability 23.04% 22.92%

Proportionate share of the City's miscellaneous plan net 
pension liability 38,280,956$     40,337,310$     

Covered payroll 15,090,600$     15,784,820$     

Proportionate share of net pension liability as a percentage 
of payroll 253.67% 255.54%

Miscellaneous plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 67.62% 66.97%

Measurement date 6/30/2014 6/30/2015
 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown. 
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2015 2016
Actuarially determined contributions 3,657,536$           3,906,008$           
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 3,657,536             3,906,008             
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                         -$                         

Covered payroll 15,784,820$         16,538,824$         

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 23.17% 23.62%

Notes to Schedule

Valuation date: 6/30/2013 6/30/2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine 
  contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Asset valuation method
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increase

Discount rate 7.65%
Retirement age
Mortality Derived using CalPERS membership data 

Entry age normal cost method
Level percentage of payroll

Market value

3.3% to 14.2% depending on age, 
service, and type of employment

50-57 for Safety; 50-67 for Miscellaneous

 
*- Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

40 

 
Water Operations Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to the operations of the City owned 
and operated water utility.  This is funded primarily by customer user charges. 
 
Water Construction Fund – accounts for water utility capital projects funded primarily by development fees and 
grants. 
 
Water Rehabilitation Fund – accounts for water utility rehabilitation projects funded by customer user charges. 
 
Water Meter Retrofit Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to installing water meters. 
 
Water Rate Stabilization Fund - accounts for all revenues and expenses related to maintaining the short-term 
and long-term financial health of the water utility and mitigating risks associated with financial exposures.  This is 
funded primarily by customer user charges. 
 
Water Engineering Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to providing engineering and 
technical services to the development community, water funds, wastewater funds, solid waste funds, and other 
City departments. 
 
Wastewater Operations Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to the operations of the City 
owned and operated wastewater utility.  This is funded primarily by customer user charges. 
 
Wastewater Construction Fund – accounts for regional development fees and deferred development fees. 
 
Wastewater Rehabilitation Fund – accounts for wastewater utility rehabilitation projects funded by customer 
user charges and local development fees. 
 
Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to maintaining the short-
term and long-term financial health of the wastewater utility and mitigating risks associated with financial 
exposures.  This is funded primarily by customer user charges. 
 
Solid Waste Operations Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to the operations of the City 
owned and operated solid waste utility.  This is funded primarily by customer user charges. 
 
Solid Waste Capital Purchase Fund – accounts for solid water utility capital projects funded by development 
fees. 
 
Solid Waste Rehabilitation Fund – accounts for solid waste utility rehabilitation projects funded by customer 
user charges. 
 
Solid Waste Rate Stabilization Fund – accounts for all revenues and expenses related to maintaining the short-
term and long-term financial health of the solid waste utility and mitigating risks associated with financial 
exposures.  This is funded primarily by customer user charges. 
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ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments 10,316,381$     35,684,276$     9,397,825$      828,092$     6,615,055$  347,520$      -$                63,189,149$     
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal 
  agents -                       9,347,196         -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  9,347,196         

Receivables:,      
accounts 3,376,825         1,630,871         -                       25,123         -                  -                    -                  5,032,819         
Accrued interest 28,566              88,991              15,899             1,700           8,136           579               -                  143,871            
Due from other government agencies 302                   208,450            -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  208,752            

Prepaids -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Due from other funds -                       243,150            -                       -                  -                  -                    (243,150)     -                       
Inventories 427,070            -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  427,070            

Total Current Assets 14,149,144       47,202,934       9,413,724        854,915       6,623,191    348,099        (243,150)     78,348,857       

Noncurrent Assets:
Developer permit fees receivable -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Investments in SPWA reserves -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Advances to other funds -                       1,588,840         -                       -                  -                  -                    (1,588,840)  -                       
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 551,646            8,346,524         2,510,141        -                  -                  -                    -                  11,408,311       
Capital assets being depreciated, net 348,498,801     97,138,225       14,298,526      5,586,900    -                  2,965            -                  465,525,417     

Total Noncurrent Assets 349,050,447     107,073,589     16,808,667      5,586,900    -                  2,965            (1,588,840)  476,933,728     

Total Assets 363,199,591     154,276,523     26,222,391      6,441,815    6,623,191    351,064        (1,831,990)  555,282,585     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding -                       2,385,742         -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  2,385,742         
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging 
  derivative -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,034,604         -                       -                       -                  -                  415,244        -                  1,449,848         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,034,604         2,385,742         -                       -                  -                  415,244        -                  3,835,590         

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 286,211            25,541              1,451               -                  -                  6,963            -                  320,166            
Accrued liabilities 610,197            157,874            -                       5                  -                  156,599        -                  924,675            
Due to other gonvernment agencies -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Due to other funds -                       -                       243,150           -                  -                  -                    (243,150)     -                       
Current portion of compensated absences 375,876            -                       -                       -                  -                  142,448        -                  518,324            
Current portion of long-term debt -                       2,255,000         -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  2,255,000         
Deposits 44,500              -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  44,500              
Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       

Total Current Liabilities 1,316,784         2,438,415         244,601           5                  -                  306,010        (243,150)     4,062,665         

Long-Term Liablities:
Advances from other funds -                       -                       1,588,840        -                  -                  -                    (1,588,840)  -                       
Long-term debt, non-current portion -                       44,127,501       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  44,127,501       
Landfill closure and post closure liability -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Compensated absences 692,286            -                       -                       -                  -                  393,833        -                  1,086,119         
Derivative at fair value-liability -                       -                       -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  -                       
Net pension liability 11,176,126       -                       -                       -                  -                  4,152,460     -                  15,328,586       

Total Long-Tem Liabilities 11,868,412       44,127,501       1,588,840        -                  -                  4,546,293     (1,588,840)  60,542,206       

Total Liabilities 13,185,196       46,565,916       1,833,441        5                  -                  4,852,303     (1,831,990)  64,604,871       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 788,225            -                       -                       -                  -                  265,062        -                  1,053,287         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 788,225            -                       -                       -                  -                  265,062        -                  1,053,287         

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 349,050,447     61,487,990       16,808,667      5,586,900    -                  2,965            -                  432,936,969     
Restricted for debt services -                       4,134,075         -                       -                  -                  -                    -                  4,134,075         
Unrestricted 1,210,327         44,474,284       7,580,283        854,910       6,623,191    (4,354,022)    -                  56,388,973       

Total Net Position (Deficit) 350,260,774$   110,096,349$   24,388,950$    6,441,810$  6,623,191$  (4,351,057)$  -$                493,460,017$   

Water
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18,682,489$     1,147,504$       25,845,956$  3,222,686$  -$                48,898,635$     17,164,822$  2,422,796$  2,618,540$  1,372,757$  -$                23,578,915$  

-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

3,183,755         1,631,958         75,660           -                  -                  4,891,373         2,670,574      94,916         -                  -                  -                  2,765,490      
32,575              1,482                55,331           6,567           -                  95,955              33,712           4,866           5,903           2,737           -                  47,218           

718,899            -                       -                     -                  -                  718,899            -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

72,989              -                       -                     -                  -                  72,989              53,424           -                  -                  -                  -                  53,424           

22,690,707       2,780,944         25,976,947    3,229,253    -                  54,677,851       19,922,532    2,522,578    2,624,443    1,375,494    -                  26,445,047    

-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       72,383,339       -                     -                  -                  72,383,339       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

5,284,243         5,244,283         8,797,114      -                  -                  19,325,640       577,813         -                  -                  -                  -                  577,813         
279,716,251     234,459,987     36,664,264    -                  -                  550,840,502     2,892,340      530,197       279,107       -                  -                  3,701,644      

285,000,494     312,087,609     45,461,378    -                  -                  642,549,481     3,470,153      530,197       279,107       -                  -                  4,279,457      

307,691,201     314,868,553     71,438,325    3,229,253    -                  697,227,332     23,392,685    3,052,775    2,903,550    1,375,494    -                  30,724,504    

-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

-                       7,105,783         -                     -                  -                  7,105,783         -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
1,578,660         -                       -                     -                  -                  1,578,660         877,500         -                  -                  -                  -                  877,500         

1,578,660         7,105,783         -                     -                  -                  8,684,443         877,500         -                  -                  -                  -                  877,500         

775,661            -                       159,759         -                  -                  935,420            654,940         19,941         22,065         -                  -                  696,946         
637,724            1,605,331         302,596         -                  -                  2,545,651         418,738         -                  -                  -                  -                  418,738         

-                       1,002,493         -                     -                  -                  1,002,493         -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

508,768            -                       -                     -                  -                  508,768            217,104         -                  -                  -                  -                  217,104         
-                       2,457,151         -                     -                  -                  2,457,151         -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       35,340           -                  -                  -                  -                  35,340           

1,922,153         5,064,975         462,355         -                  -                  7,449,483         1,326,122      19,941         22,065         -                  -                  1,368,128      

-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       85,495,035       -                     -                  -                  85,495,035       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                       1,999,776      -                  -                  -                  -                  1,999,776      

1,216,722         -                       -                     -                  -                  1,216,722         534,232         -                  -                  -                  -                  534,232         
-                       7,105,783         -                     -                  -                  7,105,783         -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

16,255,065       -                       -                     -                  -                  16,255,065       8,753,659      -                  -                  -                  -                  8,753,659      

17,471,787       92,600,818       -                     -                  -                  110,072,605     11,287,667    -                  -                  -                  -                  11,287,667    

19,393,940       97,665,793       462,355         -                  -                  117,522,088     12,613,789    19,941         22,065         -                  -                  12,655,795    

1,077,745         -                       -                     -                  1,077,745         554,532         -                  -                  -                  554,532         

1,077,745         -                       -                     -                  -                  1,077,745         554,532         -                  -                  -                  -                  554,532         

285,000,494     151,752,084     45,461,378    -                  -                  482,213,956     3,470,153      530,197       279,107       -                  -                  4,279,457      
-                       4,829,982         -                     -                  -                  4,829,982         -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

3,797,682         67,726,477       25,514,592    3,229,253    -                  100,268,004     7,631,711      2,502,637    2,602,378    1,375,494    -                  14,112,220    

288,798,176$   224,308,543$   70,975,970$  3,229,253$  -$                587,311,942$   11,101,864$  3,032,834$  2,881,485$  1,375,494$  -$                18,391,677$  

Wastewater Solid Waste
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 21,964,898$    422,275$         -$                    11,622$       -$                 293,553$      -$                22,692,348$    
Other 108,356           57,109             -                      20,146         -                   82,559          -                  268,170           

Total Operating Revenues 22,073,254      479,384           -                      31,768         -                   376,112        -                  22,960,518      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 11,147,334      501,384           233,397          -                  -                   2,041,507     -                  13,923,622      
Administration 2,467,504        -                       -                      -                  -                   41,457          -                  2,508,961        
Depreciation and amortization 6,523,268        1,334,434        215,675          472,025       -                   3,255            -                  8,548,657        

Total Operating Expenses 20,138,106      1,835,818        449,072          472,025       -                   2,086,219     -                  24,981,240      

Operating Income (Loss) 1,935,148        (1,356,434)       (449,072)         (440,257)     -                   (1,710,107)    -                  (2,020,722)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and rents revenue 145,738           555,597           80,172            8,290           38,678         4,328            -                  832,803           
Interest and fiscal charges (expense) -                       (1,353,114)       (47,940)           -                  -                   -                    -                  (1,401,054)       
Cost of issuance -                       (448,220)          -                      -                  -                   -                    -                  (448,220)          
Gain (loss) from sale of property (11,565)            (1,167)              -                      -                  -                   -                    -                  (12,732)            
Subventions and grants (454)                 1,230,763        -                      -                  -                   -                    -                  1,230,309        
Increase (decrease) in SPWA reserves -                       -                       -                      -                  -                   -                    -                  -                       

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 133,719           (16,141)            32,232            8,290           38,678         4,328            -                  201,106           

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 
  and Transfers 2,068,867        (1,372,575)       (416,840)         (431,967)     38,678         (1,705,779)    -                  (1,819,616)       

Capital contributions - connection/impact fees -                       6,324,789        -                      91,160         -                   -                    -                  6,415,949        
Capital contributions from developers 14,374,340      -                       -                      -                  -                   -                    -                  14,374,340      
Transfers in 1,342,214        159,247           3,875,623       -                  3,650,000    2,348,451     (9,220,512)  2,155,023        
Transfers (out) (13,713,203)     (230,818)          (372,091)         (15,904)       (733)             (560,134)       9,220,512    (5,672,371)       

Change in Net Position 4,072,218        4,880,643        3,086,692       (356,711)     3,687,945    82,538          -                  15,453,325      

Total net position (deficit)-beginning 346,188,556    105,215,706    21,302,258     6,798,521    2,935,246    (4,433,595)    -                  478,006,692    

Total net position (deficit)-ending 350,260,774$  110,096,349$  24,388,950$   6,441,810$  6,623,191$  (4,351,057)$  -$                493,460,017$  

Water
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34,357,622$    -$                     -$                   -$                 -$                 34,357,622$    21,769,252$  -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 21,769,252$  
53,735             -                       47                  -                   -                   53,782             634,100         -                   -                   -                   -                   634,100         

34,411,357      -                       47                  -                   -                   34,411,404      22,403,352    -                   -                   -                   -                   22,403,352    

18,415,440      -                       481,114         -                   -                   18,896,554      16,532,172    86,433         280,512       -                   -                   16,899,117    
477,205           -                       -                     -                   -                   477,205           629,141         -                   -                   -                   -                   629,141         

4,966,668        6,354,825        534,594         -                   -                   11,856,087      241,408         41,615         45,817         -                   -                   328,840         

23,859,313      6,354,825        1,015,708      -                   -                   31,229,846      17,402,721    128,048       326,329       -                   -                   17,857,098    

10,552,044      (6,354,825)       (1,015,661)     -                   -                   3,181,558        5,000,631      (128,048)      (326,329)      -                   -                   4,546,254      

163,424           7,552               274,566         31,732         -                   477,274           167,456         23,807         29,101         13,135         -                   233,499         
-                       (3,377,719)       (163,933)        -                   -                   (3,541,652)       (2,834)            -                   -                   -                   -                   (2,834)            
-                       -                       -                     -                   -                   -                       -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

(15,178)            -                       -                     -                   -                   (15,178)            -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     
-                       -                       -                     -                   -                   -                       68,777           -                   -                   -                   -                   68,777           
-                       89,962             -                     -                   -                   89,962             -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

148,246           (3,280,205)       110,633         31,732         -                   (2,989,594)       233,399         23,807         29,101         13,135         -                   299,442         

10,700,290      (9,635,030)       (905,028)        31,732         -                   191,964           5,234,030      (104,241)      (297,228)      13,135         -                   4,845,696      

-                       6,654,784        309,485         -                   6,964,269        -                     471,458       -                   -                   -                   471,458         
12,467,452      1,097,161        -                   13,564,613      -                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     
1,267,899        -                       7,026,398      650,000       (7,554,862)   1,389,435        65,143           -                   474,647       350,000       (862,722)      27,068           

(12,244,781)     (460)                 (303,506)        (1,279)          7,554,862    (4,995,164)       (4,708,382)     (51,617)        (80,313)        -                   862,722       (3,977,590)     

12,190,860      (1,883,545)       6,127,349      680,453       -                   17,115,117      590,791         315,600       97,106         363,135       -                   1,366,632      

276,607,316    226,192,088    64,848,621    2,548,800    -                   570,196,825    10,511,073    2,717,234    2,784,379    1,012,359    -                   17,025,045    

288,798,176$  224,308,543$  70,975,970$  3,229,253$  -$                 587,311,942$  11,101,864$  3,032,834$  2,881,485$  1,375,494$  -$                 18,391,677$  

Solid WasteWastewater
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 21,280,068$ 480,233$      -$                15,490$       -$                314,570$     -$                 22,090,361$ 
Payments to suppliers (5,337,761)    (1,125,401)    (236,632)     -                  -                  (2,038,218)   -                   (8,738,012)    
Payments to employees (8,512,022)    (157,741)       -                  -                  -                  (61,733)        -                   (8,731,496)    
Other receipts 108,355        57,109          -                  20,146         -                  82,559         -                   268,169        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
  Operating Activities 7,538,640     (745,800)       (236,632)     35,636         -                  (1,702,822)   -                   4,889,022     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Subventions and grants 16,582          1,016,503     -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   1,033,085     
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                    
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -                    -                    5,810           -                  -                  -                   -                   5,810            
(Increase) decrease in advances to other funds -                    914,284        671,134       -                  -                  -                   -                   1,585,418     
Increase (decrease) in advances from other funds -                    -                    (243,150)     -                  -                  -                   -                   (243,150)       
Transfers in 1,459,343     159,247        3,669,444    -                  3,650,000    2,348,451    (9,131,462)   2,155,023     
Transfers (out) (13,624,153)  (230,818)       (372,091)     (15,904)       (733)            (560,134)      9,131,462    (5,672,371)    

Cash Flows from (used for) Noncapital 
  Financing Activities (12,148,228)  1,859,216     3,731,147    (15,904)       3,649,267    1,788,317    -                   (1,136,185)    

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (66,766)         (579,636)       (238,438)     -                  -                  (1)                 -                   (884,841)       
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                    (1,167)           -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   (1,167)           
Issuance of debt -                    2,321,173     -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   2,321,173     
Issuance of costs -                    (448,220)       -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   (448,220)       
Principal payments on capital debt -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                    
Interest paid on capital debt -                    (1,353,114)    (47,940)       -                  -                  -                   -                   (1,401,054)    
Connection fees -                    6,324,789     -                  91,160         -                  -                   -                   6,415,949     

Cash Flows from (used for) Capital and 
  Related Financing Activities (66,766)         6,263,825     (286,378)     91,160         -                  (1)                 -                   6,001,840     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and rents received 143,665        558,997        81,391         8,043           36,761         4,361           -                   833,218        
Receipts from sale of (payment to acquire) 
  investments, net -                    (4,799,591)    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   (4,799,591)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 143,665        (4,240,594)    81,391         8,043           36,761         4,361           -                   (3,966,373)    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
  equivalents (4,532,689)    3,136,647     3,289,528    118,935       3,686,028    89,855         -                   5,788,304     

Cash and investments at beginning of period, as 
  restated 14,849,070   32,547,629   6,108,297    709,157       2,929,027    257,665       -                   57,400,845   

Cash and investments at end of period 10,316,381$ 35,684,276$ 9,397,825$  828,092$     6,615,055$  347,520$     -$                 63,189,149$ 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) 1,935,148$   (1,356,434)$  (449,072)$   (440,257)$   -$                (1,710,107)$ -$                 (2,020,722)$  
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 
  cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 6,523,268     1,334,434     215,675       472,025       -                  3,255           -                   8,548,657     
Inventories 22,720          -                    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   22,720          
Net pension obligations (241,742)       -                    -                  -                  -                  (97,560)        -                   (339,302)       

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (698,330)       61,358          -                  3,871           -                  21,017         -                   (612,084)       
Prepaids 72,057          -                    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   72,057          
Accounts and other payables (74,481)         (785,158)       (3,235)         (3)                -                  80,573         -                   (782,304)       
Unearned revenue -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                   -                   -                    

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 7,538,640$   (745,800)$     (236,632)$   35,636$       -$                (1,702,822)$ -$                 4,889,022$   

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Capital assets transferred from the City 28,626$        177,887$      206,513$      
Contributions of capital assets 14,168,161$ 14,168,161$ 
Transfer of capital assets to other funds 84,537$        2,504,638$  (2,589,175)$ -$                  
Transfer of capital assets from other funds (57,042)$       (13,180)$     70,222$       -$                  
Amortization of bond premium 137,959$      137,959$      
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding (37,076)$       (37,076)$       

Water
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Rate Interfund Capital Rate Interfund
Operations Construction Rehabilitation Stabilization Eliminations Total Operations Purchase Rehabilitation Stabilization Eliminations Total

34,202,873$ -$                 -$                  -$                -$                34,202,873$ 21,726,650$ -$                -$                -$                -$                21,726,650$   
(12,147,507)  -                   (678,856)       -                  -                  (12,826,363)  (11,323,135)  (69,158)       (269,318)     (727)            -                  (11,662,338)    

(6,599,108)    (36,758)        -                    -                  -                  (6,635,866)    (5,801,874)    -                  -                  -                  -                  (5,801,874)      
53,735          -                   47                 -                  -                  53,782          634,100        -                  -                  -                  -                  634,100          

15,509,993   (36,758)        (678,809)       -                  -                  14,794,426   5,235,741     (69,158)       (269,318)     (727)            -                  4,896,538       

-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    68,777          -                  -                  -                  -                  68,777            
-                    (952,813)      114,512        -                  -                  (838,301)       -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    58,441         -                    -                  -                  58,441          (114,512)       -                  -                  -                  -                  (114,512)         
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      

1,267,899     -                   6,951,514     650,000       (7,479,978)  1,389,435     25,435          -                  474,647       350,000       (823,014)     27,068            
(12,169,897)  (460)             (303,506)       (1,279)         7,479,978    (4,995,164)    (4,708,382)    (11,909)       (80,313)       -                  823,014       (3,977,590)      

(10,901,998)  (894,832)      6,762,520     648,721       -                  (4,385,589)    (4,728,682)    (11,909)       394,334       350,000       -                  (3,996,257)      

(2,170,452)    201,972       (3,635,347)    -                  -                  (5,603,827)    (283,932)       -                  -                  -                  -                  (283,932)         
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    (2,489,559)   -                    -                  -                  (2,489,559)    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
-                    (3,377,719)   -                    -                  -                  (3,377,719)    (2,834)           -                  -                  -                  -                  (2,834)             
-                    6,654,784    309,485        -                  -                  6,964,269     39,708          431,750       -                  -                  -                  471,458          

(2,170,452)    989,478       (3,325,862)    -                  -                  (4,506,836)    (247,058)       431,750       -                  -                  -                  184,692          

161,875        7,521           262,640        30,332         -                  462,368        164,867        23,007         29,101         13,135         -                  230,110          

-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      
161,875        7,521           262,640        30,332         -                  462,368        164,867        23,007         29,101         13,135         -                  230,110          

2,599,418     65,409         3,020,489     679,053       -                  6,364,369     424,868        373,690       154,117       362,408       -                  1,315,083       

16,083,071   1,082,095    22,825,467   2,543,633    -                  42,534,266   16,739,954   2,049,106    2,464,423    1,010,349    -                  22,263,832     

18,682,489$ 1,147,504$  25,845,956$ 3,222,686$  -$                48,898,635$ 17,164,822$ 2,422,796$  2,618,540$  1,372,757$  -$                23,578,915$   

10,552,044$ (6,354,825)$ (1,015,661)$  -$                -$                3,181,558$   5,000,631$   (128,048)$   (326,329)$   -$                -$                4,546,254$     

4,966,668     6,354,825    534,594        -                  -                  11,856,087   241,408        41,615         45,817         -                  -                  328,840          
(68,294)         -                   -                    -                  -                  (68,294)         70,362          -                  -                  -                  -                  70,362            

(368,501)       -                   -                    -                  -                  (368,501)       (204,445)       -                  -                  -                  -                  (204,445)         

(154,749)       (22,994)        (1,045)           -                  -                  (178,788)       (42,721)         (2,666)         (551)            (727)            -                  (46,665)           
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    -                    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      

582,825        (13,764)        (196,697)       -                  -                  372,364        170,387        19,941         11,745         -                  -                  202,073          
-                    -                   -                    -                  -                  -                    119               -                  -                  -                  -                  119                 

15,509,993$ (36,758)$      (678,809)$     -$                -$                14,794,426$ 5,235,741$   (69,158)$     (269,318)$   (727)$          -$                4,896,538$     

67,716$        143,082$      210,798$      40,041$        40,041$          
13,353,148  13,353,148$ -                  

70,222$        4,022$          (74,244)$     -                84,537$        (84,537)$     -                  
(173,096)$     (2,504,638)$  2,677,734$  -                

201,973$     201,973$      
-                

Solid WasteWastewater



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Public Utilities Commission
Environmental Utilities
Department City of Roseville, California

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Environmental Utilities 
Enterprise Funds (Funds) of the City of Roseville, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Funds’ basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2017. Our report includes an emphasis 
of matter paragraph regarding the Funds’ adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective July 1, 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Funds’ internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 



or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Funds’ financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.

 

Sacramento, California 
January 17, 2017

2151 River Plaza Drive, Suite 308 Sacramento, CA 95833  | Tel: 916.570.1880 | Fax: 916.570.1875 | www.vtdcpa.com 
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